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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes 1 No [
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

All statements, other than historical fact or present financial information, may be deemed to be forward-looking statements
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). All statements that address activities, outcomes and other matters that should or may
occur in the future, including, without limitation, statements regarding the financial position, business strategy, production and
reserve growth and other plans and objectives for our future operations, are forward-looking statements. Although we believe the
expectationsexpressed in such forward-looking statementsare based on reasonabl eassumptions, such statementsare not guarantees
of futureperformance. Wehaveno obligationand makeno undertakingto publicly updateor reviseany forward-looking statements,
except as may be required by law.

Forward-looking statements include the items identified in the preceding paragraph, information concerning possible or
assumed future results of operations and other statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q identified by words such as
“anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,” “project,” “estimate,” “continue,” “potential,” “should,” “could,” “may,” “will,” “objective,”
“guidance,” “outlook,” “effort,” “expect,” “believe,” “predict,” “budget,” “projection,” “goal,” “forecast,” “target” or similar
words.

You should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. They are subject to known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may affect our operations, markets, products, services and prices and cause our actual results,
performance or achievementsto be materially different from any futureresults, performance or achievementsexpressed or implied
by the forward-looking statements. In addition to any assumptions and other factors referred to specifically in connection with
forward-looking statements, risks, uncertainties and factors that could cause our actua results to differ materialy from those
indicated in any forward-looking statement include, but are not limited to:

« thetiming and extent of changes in market conditions and prices for natural gas, oil and natural gas liquids (“NGLS")
(including regional basis differentials);

e our ability to fund our planned capital investments;

e achangein our credit rating;

* theextent to which lower commodity pricesimpact our ability to service or refinance our existing debt;
e theimpact of volatility in the financial markets or other global economic factors;

« difficultiesin appropriately allocating capital and resources among our strategic opportunities,

* thetiming and extent of our success in discovering, developing, producing and estimating reserves,

e our ability to maintain leases that may expireif production is not established or profitably maintained;
e our ahility to realize the expected benefits from acquisitions;

e our ability to transport our production to the most favorable markets or at all;

e availability and costs of personnel and of products and services provided by third parties;

« theimpact of government regulation, including changesin law, the ability to obtain and maintain permits, any increase
in severance or similar taxes, and legislation or regulation relating to hydraulic fracturing, climate and over-the-counter
derivatives,

« theimpact of the adverse outcome of any material litigation against us or judicial decisionsthat affect us or our industry
generdly;

» theeffects of weather;

e increased competition;

» thefinancial impact of accounting regulations and critical accounting policies;

» the comparative cost of alternative fuels;

e credit risk relating to the risk of loss as aresult of hon-performance by our counterparties; and

« any other factorslisted in the reports we have filed and may file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“ SEC”).

Should one or more of the risks or uncertainties described above or elsewhere in this Quarterly Report occur, or should
underlying assumptions prove incorrect, our actual results and plans could differ materially from those expressed in any forward-
looking statements. We specifically disclaim all responsibility to update publicly any information contained in aforward-looking

statement or any forward-looking statement in its entirety and therefore disclaim any resulting liability for potentialy related
damages.

All forward-looking statements attributable to us are expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement.
2
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PART | - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Unaudited)

(in millions, except share/per share amounts)
Operating Revenues:

Gassales

Oil sales

NGL saes

Marketing

Gas gathering

Other

Operating Costs and Expenses:
Marketing purchases
Operating expenses
General and administrative expenses
Restructuring charges
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Taxes, other than income taxes

Operating Income
Interest Expense:
Interest on debt
Other interest charges
Interest capitalized

Loss on Derivatives
Other Income (Loss), Net

Income Before Income Taxes
Benefit from Income Taxes:
Current
Deferred

Net Income
Participating securities - mandatory convertible preferred stock
Net Income Attributable to Common Stock

Earnings Per Common Share:
Basic
Diluted
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

For the three months ended
March 31,
2019 2018
$ 430 $ 540
39 35
81 65
438 253
— 24
2 3
990 920
441 255
165 189
37 55
3 -
112 143
19 23
777 665
213 255
42 65
1 2
(29) (28)
14 39
(32) (7
1 Q)
168 208
(426) —
(426) —
$ 594 $ 208
— 3
$ 594 $ 205
$ 110 $ 0.36
$ 110 $ 0.36
539,721,751 571,297,804
“541,320,487 573,844,459

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Unaudited)
For the three months ended
March 31,

(in millions) 2019 2018
Net income $ 504 % 208
Changein value of pension and other postretirement liabilities:

Amortization of prior service cost and net gain included in net periodic pension cost ¥ - —
Comprehensive income $ 594 $ 208

(1) For the three months ended March 31, 2018, deferred tax activity incurred in other comprehensive income was offset by a valuation allowance.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)
March 31, December 31,
2019 2018
ASSETS (in millions)
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 366 $ 201
Accounts receivable, net 390 581
Derivative assets 87 130
Other current assets 44 a4
Total current assets 887 956
Natural gas and oil properties, using the full cost method, including $1,673 million as of March 31, 2019 24,486 24,180
and $1,755 million as of December 31, 2018 excluded from amortization
Gathering systems 38 38
Other 509 487
Less: Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization (20,162) (20,049)
Total property and equipment, net 4,871 4,656
Deferred tax assets 426 —
Other long-term assets 262 185
TOTAL ASSETS $ 6,446 $ 5,797
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt $ 52 % —
Accounts payable 626 609
Taxes payable 62 58
Interest payable 58 52
Derivative liabilities 50 79
Other current liabilities 95 48
Total current liabilities 943 846
Long-term debt 2,267 2,318
Pension and other postretirement liabilities 43 46
Other long-term liabilities 256 225
Total long-term liabilities 2,566 2,589
Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)
Equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 1,250,000,000 shares authorized; issued 585,548,726 shares as of 6 6
March 31, 2019 and 585,407,107 as of December 31, 2018
Additional paid-in capital 4,717 4,715
Accumulated deficit (1,548) (2,142)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (36) (36)
Common stock in treasury, 44,353,224 shares as of March 31, 2019 and 39,092,537 shares as of (202) (181)
December 31, 2018
Total equity 2,937 2,362
TOTAL LIABILITIESAND EQUITY $ 6,446 $ 5,797

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in millions)
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Deferred income taxes
(Gain) loss on derivatives, unsettled
Stock-based compensation
Other

Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable
Taxes payable
Interest payable
Other assets and liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Capital investments
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Other
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Change in bank drafts outstanding
Purchase of treasury stock
Preferred stock dividend
Cash paid for tax withholding
Net cash used in financing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

(Unaudited)

For the three months ended
March 31,
2019 2018

$ 594 % 208
112 143

1 2

(426) —
22 2

2 4

1 3

189 46
(48) (17)
4 (12)
2 (4)
(11) (7

442 364
(258) (302)

— 6

— 2

(258) (294)

3 —_

(21) —

= (27)

1) (1)

(19) (28)

165 42

201 916

366 $

958

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(Unaudited)
Common Stock Additional Accgrtmjalrated Com_rﬁcgssjtrgck "
Shares Paid-In Accumulated Comprehensive
Issued Amount Capital Deficit Income (Loss) Shares Amount  Total
(in millions, except share amounts)
Balance at December 31, 2018 585,407,107 $ 6 $ 4715 $ (2,142) $ (36) 39092537 $ (181) $2,362
Comprehensive income:

Net income — — — 594 — = = 594
Other comprehensive income — — — — — _ _ _
Total comprehensiveincome — — = — — — _ T o4
Stock-based compensation — — 3 — — — — 3
I ssuance of restricted stock 8,798 — — — — — — _
Cancellation of restricted stock (128,324) — — — — — — —
Treasury stock — — — — — 5,260,687 () (21)
Performance units vested 535,802 — — — — — _ _
Tax withholding — stock compensation (274,657) — @ — — — — 1)
Balance at March 31, 2019 585,548,726 $ 6 $ 4717 $ (1,548) $ (36) 44353224 $ (202) $2,937

Common Stock Prsetf(;e(r:lr(ed Additional Accgrtrp]lgrated Com_ﬂcgssjtrgck "
Shares Shares Paid-In Accumulated  Comprehensive
| ssued Amount I ssued Capital Deficit Income(Loss)  Shares Amount  Tota
(in millions, except share amounts)
Balance at December 31, 2017 512,134,311 $ 5 1725000 $ 4698 $ (2,679) $ (44) 31,269 $ (1) $1979
Comprehensive income:

Net income — — — — 208 — — — 208
Other comprehensive income — — — — — — _ _ _
Total comprehensive income — — = — — — — — T 208
Stock-based compensation — — — 7 — — — _ 7
Conversion of preferred stock 74,998,614 1 (1,725,000) 1) — — — — —
Issuance of restricted stock 5,076 — — — — — _ _ _
Cancellation of restricted stock (160,168) = — — — = - — —
Performance units vested 214,866 — — — — — _ _ _
Tax withholding — stock (338,808) — — @) — — — — 1)

compensation
Balance at March 31, 2018 586,853,891 $ 6 — $ 4703 $ (2,471) $ (44) 31,269 $ (1) $2193

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financia statements.



Table of Contents

SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Southwestern Energy Company (including its subsidiaries, collectively “ Southwestern” or the“Company”) isan independent
energy company engaged in natural gas, oil and NGL exploration, development and production (“E&P’). The Company is aso
focused on creating and capturing additional value through its marketing business (“Midstream”). Southwestern conducts most
of itsbusinessthrough subsidiaries and operates principally in two segments: E& Pand Midstream. The Company also hasdrilling
rigslocated in Pennsylvaniaand West Virginiaand provides dilfield products and services, principally serving its E& P operations.
The Company’s historical financial and operating results include its Fayetteville Shale E& P and related midstream gathering
businesses which were sold in early December 2018 (the “ Fayetteville Shale sale”). The saleisdiscussed in further detail in Note.
2.

E&P. Southwestern’'s primary business is the exploration for and production of natural gas, oil and NGLs, with ongoing
operationsfocused on the devel opment of unconventional natural gasand oil reservoirslocated in Pennsylvaniaand West Virginia.
The Company’s operations in northeast Pennsylvania, herein referred to as “Northeast Appalachia,” are primarily focused on the
unconventional natural gas reservoir known as the Marcellus Shale. Operations in West Virginia and southwest Pennsylvania,
hereinreferredto as” Southwest Appalachia,” arefocused ontheMarcellus Shal e, the Uticaand the Upper Devonian unconventional
natural gas and oil reservoirs. Collectively, Southwestern refersto its properties|ocated in Pennsylvaniaand West Virginiaasthe
“Appalachian Basin.”

Midstream. Southwestern’s marketing activities capture opportunities that arise through the marketing and transportation of
natural gas, oil and NGLs produced in its E& P operations.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements were prepared using accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP”) for interim financia information and in accordance with the rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission. Certain information relating to the Company’s organization and footnote disclosures
normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have been appropriately condensed or omitted in
thisQuarterly Report. The Company believesthedisclosures made are adequate to maketheinformation presented not misleading.

The consolidated financial statements contained in this report include all normal and recurring material adjustments that, in
the opinion of management, are necessary for afair statement of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows for
the interim periods presented herein. It isrecommended that these consolidated financial statements be read in conjunction with
the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2018 (“2018 Annual Report”).

The Company’s significant accounting policies, which have been reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee of the
Company’s Board of Directors, are summarized in Note 1 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementsincluded in the
Company’s 2018 Annual Report.

(2) DIVESTITURES

On August 30, 2018, the Company entered into an agreement with Flywheel Energy Operating, LLC to sell 100% of the
equity in the Company’s subsidiaries that owned and operated its Fayetteville Shale E& P and related midstream gathering assets
for $1,865 million in cash, subject to customary closing adjustments, with an economic effective date of July 1, 2018. On
December 3, 2018, the Company closed on the Fayetteville Shale sale and received approximately $1,650 million, whichincluded
preliminary purchase price adjustments of approximately $215 million primarily related to the net cash flows from the economic
effective date to the closing date.

The Company retained certain contractual commitments related to firm transportation, with the buyer obligated to pay the
transportation provider directly for these charges. As of March 31, 2019, approximately $188 million of these contractual
commitmentsremain of which the Company will reimbursethe buyer for certain of these potential obligationsup to approximately
$94 million through 2020 depending on the buyer’s actual use. At March 31, 2019, the Company has recorded a $78 million
liability for the estimated future payments.

From the proceeds received, $914 million was used to repurchase $900 million of the Company’s outstanding senior notes,
including premiumsand $9 millionin accrued interest paid in December 2018. In addition, $201 million, including approximately
$1 million in commissions, was used to repurchase approximately 44 million shares of the Company’s outstanding common stock,
including $21 million during the three months ended March 31, 2019. The Company intends to use the remaining net proceeds
from the sale to supplement Appalachian Basin development and for general corporate purposes.

8
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(3) RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

In December 2018, the Company closed on the sale of the equity in certain of its subsidiaries that owned and operated its
Fayetteville Shale E& P and related midstream gathering assetsin Arkansas. Aspart of the transaction, most empl oyees associated
with those assets became employees of the buyer although the employment of some was, or will be, terminated. All affected
employees were offered a severance package, which included a one-time cash payment depending on length of service and, if
applicable, the current value of a portion of equity awards that were forfeited. Asof March 31, 2019, aliability of $2 million for
severance payments has been accrued for the remaining Fayetteville Shale sale-related employment terminationsin 2019.

The Company hasalsoincurred chargesrelated to office consolidation and has recognized those costs asrestructuring charges.
The following table presents a summary of the restructuring charges included in Operating Income for the three months ended
March 31, 2019:

For the three months ended

(in millions) March 31, 2019
Severance (including payroll taxes) $ 2
Office consolidation 1
Total restructuring charges® $ 3

(1) Total restructuring charges were $3 million for the Company’s E& P segment for the three months ended March 31, 2019.

Thefollowing table presents a summary of the liabilities associated with the Company’s restructuring activities at March 31,
2019 which are reflected in accounts payable on the consolidated balance sheet:

For the three months ended
(in millions) March 31, 2019
Liability at December 31, 2018 $ 5
Additions 3
Distributions (6)
Liability at March 31, 2019 $ 2

(4) LEASES

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) (“Update 2016-02"),
which seeksto increase transparency and comparability among organizations by, among other things, recognizing | ease assets and
lease liahilities on the balance sheet for leases classified as operating leases under previous GAAP and disclosing key information
about leasing arrangements.  Thecodification wasamended through additional ASUs. For public entities, Update 2016-02 became
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company
adopted ASC 842 with an effective date of January 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective approach for all leases that existed
at the date of initial application. The Company elected to apply the transition as of the beginning of the period of adoption. For
leasesthat existed at the period of adoption on January 1, 2019, theincremental borrowing rate as of the application date was used
to calculate the present value of remaining lease payments.

The standard provides optional practical expedientsto ease the burden of transition. The Company has adopted the following
practical expedients through implementation:

« an election not to apply the recognition requirements in the leases standard to short-term leases and recognize lease
paymentsin the consolidated statement of operations (aleasethat at commencement date hasan initial term of 12 months
or less and does not contain a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise);

» apackage of practical expedientsto not reassess. whether a contract is or contains alease, lease classification and initial
direct costs,

e apractical expedient that permits combining lease and non-lease components in a contract and accounting for the
combination as a lease (elected by asset class);

e apractical expedient to not reassess certain land easements in existence prior to January 1, 2019; and

« an election to adopt the modified retrospective approach for all leases existing at or entered into after the initial date of
adoption which does not require arestatement of prior period. No cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earningswas
required as aresult of the modified retrospective approach.
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Upon adoption of ASC 842, the Company recognized a discounted right of use asset and corresponding lease liability with
opening balances of approximately $105 million as of January 1, 2019. The adoption of the standard did not materially change
the Company’s consolidated statement of operations or its consolidated statement of cash flows.

The Company determinesif acontract contains alease at inception. A leaseisdefined asacontract, or part of acontract, that
conveystheright to control the use of identified property, plant or equipment (an identified asset) for aperiod of timein exchange
for consideration. A right of use asset and lease liability are recognized on the balance sheet at commencement at an amount based
on the present value of the remaining |ease payments over the lease term. Asthe implicit rate of the lease is not always readily
determinable, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate to calculate the present value of the lease payments based on
information available at commencement date. Operating right of use assetsareincluded in other long-term assets while operating
leaseliabilitiesareincluded in other current and other long-term liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet. The Company does
not have any financing lease type of arrangements as of March 31, 2019. By policy election, leaseswith an initial term of twelve
months or less are not recorded on the balance sheet. The Company recognizes lease expense for these leases on a straight-line
basis, and variable lease payments are recognized in the period asincurred. Variable lease costswereimmaterial through the first
quarter ended March 31, 2019.

Certain leases contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company has chosen to account for most of these leases
asasinglelease component instead of separating. However, for compression service leases and fleet vehicle leases, the lease and
non-lease components are accounted for separately.

The Company leases drilling rigs, pressure pumping equipment, vehicles, office space, certain water transportation lines, an
aircraft and other equipment under non-cancelable operating leases expiring through 2032. Certain lease agreements include
optionsto renew the lease, early terminate the lease or purchase the underlying asset(s). The Company determines the lease term
at the lease commencement date as the non-cancel able period of the lease, including optionsto extend or terminate the |ease when
such an option is reasonably certain to be exercised. The Company’s water transportation lines are the only leases with renewal
optionsthat are reasonably certain to be exercised. These renewal options are reflected in the right of use asset and lease liability
balances.

The Company’sonly material residual value guarantee relatesto its headquarters building, which would be due only if, at the
end of the lease term, the building is either purchased by the Company or marketed to a third party where the purchase priceis
lessthan theresidual value guarantee. The Company does not consider the residual val ue guarantee to be probabl e of being owed;
thus, it is not currently included within the minimum lease payments. The Company’s existing operating leases do not contain
any material restrictive covenants.

Asof March 31, 2019, the Company has operating leases of |ess than $1.5 million, primarily for compressor leases that have
not yet commenced. These operating leases are planned to commence during 2019 with lease terms expiring through 2022.

The components of lease costs are shown below:

For the three months ended
March 31, 2019
(in millions)
Operating lease cost $ 11
Short-term lease cost 12
Variable lease cost —
Total lease cost $ 23

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases is set forth below:

For the three months ended
March 31, 2019
(in millions)
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:
Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 11

Right-of use assets obtained in exchange for new operating liabilities:
Operating leases $ 3

10
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Supplemental balance sheet information related to leasesis as follows:

March 31, 2019

Right-of-use asset balance: (in millions)

Operating leases $ 100
Lease liability balance: (in millions)
Short-term operating leases $ 38
Long-term operating leases 62
Total operating leases $ 100

Weighted average remaining lease term: (years)

Operating leases 41
Weighted average discount rate:
Operating leases 5.86%

Maturity analysis of operating lease liahilities:

(in millions) March 31, 2019
2019 $ 33
2020 32
2021 18
2022 9
2023 8
2024 4
Thereafter 9
Total undiscounted lease liability $ 113
Imputed interest (13)
Total discounted lease liability $ 100
(in millions) December 31, 2018
2019 $ 38
2020 28
2021 14
2022 6
2023 5
Thereafter 4
Total minimum payments required $ 95

(5) REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenues from Contracts with Customers

Natural gas and liquids. Natural gas, oil and natural gasliquid (“NGL") sales are recognized when control of the product is
transferred to the customer at a designated delivery point. The pricing provisions of the Company’s contracts are primarily tied
to a market index with certain adjustments based on factors such as delivery, quality of the product and prevailing supply and
demand conditions in the geographic areas in which the Company operates. Under the Company’s sales contracts, the delivery
of each unit of natural gas, oil and NGL s represents a separate performance obligation, and revenue is recognized at the point in
time when the performance obligations are fulfilled. Thereis no significant financing component to the Company’s revenues as
payment terms are typically within 30 to 60 days of control transfer. Furthermore, consideration from a customer corresponds
directly with the value to the customer of the Company’s performance completed to date. As aresult, the Company recognizes
revenue in the amount to which the Company has a right to invoice and has not disclosed information regarding its remaining
performance obligations.

The Company records revenue from its natural gas and liquids production in the amount of its net revenue interest in sales
from its properties. Accordingly, natural gas and liquid sales are not recognized for deliveries in excess of the Company’s net
revenue interest, while natural gas and liquid sales are recognized for any under-delivered volumes. Production imbalances are
recorded as receivables and payables and not contract assets or contract liabilities as the imbalances are between the Company
and other working interest owners, not the end customer.

11
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Marketing. The Company, through its marketing affiliate, generally markets natural gas, oil and NGLsfor its affiliated E& P
companies as well as other joint interest owners who choose to market with Southwestern. In addition, the Company markets
some products purchased from third parties. Marketing revenues for natural gas, oil and NGL sales are recognized when control
of the product is transferred to the customer at a designated delivery point. The pricing provisions of the Company’s contracts
areprimarily tied to amarket index with certain adjustments based on factors such asdelivery, quality of the product and prevailing
supply and demand conditions. Under the Company’s marketing contracts, the delivery of each unit of natural gas, oil and NGLs
represents a separate performance obligation, and revenue is recognized at the point in time when the performance obligations are
fulfilled. Customersare invoiced and revenues are recorded each month as natural gas, oil and NGLs are delivered, and payment
termsaretypically within 30 to 60 days of control transfer. Furthermore, consideration from acustomer corresponds directly with
the value to the customer of the Company’s performance completed to date. Asaresult, the Company recognizes revenue in the
amount to which the Company has a right to invoice and has not disclosed information regarding its remaining performance
obligations.

Gas gathering. Prior to its sale in December 2018 as part of the Fayetteville Shale sale, the Company, through its gathering
affiliate, gathered natural gas pursuant to a variety of contracts with customers, including an affiliated E& P company. The
performance obligations for gas gathering services included delivery of each unit of natural gas to the designated delivery point,
which may include treating of certain natural gas unitsto meet interstate pipeline specifications. Revenue was recognized at the
point in time when performance obligations were fulfilled. Under the Company’s gathering contracts, customers were invoiced
and revenue was recogni zed each month based on the volume of natural gastransported and treated at a contractually agreed upon
price per unit. Payment terms were typically within 30 to 60 days of completion of the performance obligations. Furthermore,
consideration from a customer corresponded directly with the value to the customer of the Company’s performance compl eted to
date. As a result, the Company recognized revenue in the amount to which the Company had a right to invoice and had not
disclosed information regarding its remaining performance obligations. Any imbalances were settled on a monthly basis by
cashing-out with the respective shipper. Accordingly, there were no contract assets or contract liabilitiesrelated to the Company’s
gas gathering revenues.

Disaggregation of Revenues

The Company presents a disaggregation of E& P revenues by product on the consolidated statements of operations net of
intersegment revenues. Thefollowing tablereconcilesoperating revenuesas presented ontheconsolidated statementsof operations
to the operating revenues by segment:

Intersegment
(in millions) E&P Midstream Revenues Total
Three months ended March 31, 2019
Gas sales $ 421 $ — % 9 ¢ 430
Oil sales 39 — — 39
NGL sales 81 — — 81
Marketing — 940 (502) 438
Other @ 1 1 — 2
Total $ 542 $ 941 $ (493) $ 990
Three months ended March 31, 2018
Gassades $ 53 $ — 3 5 $ 540
Oil sales 34 — 1 35
NGL sales 65 — — 65
Marketing — 829 (576) 253
Gas gathering @ — 67 (43) 24
Other @ 3 — — 3
Total $ 637 $ 89%6 $ (613) $ 920

(1) Other E& Prevenues consists primarily of water salesto third-party operators, and other Midstream revenues consists primarily of sales of gasfrom storage.

(2) The Company’s gas gathering assets were divested in December 2018 as part of the Fayetteville Shale sale.
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Associated E& P revenues are also disaggregated for analysis on a geographic basis by the core areas in which the Company
operates, which are in Pennsylvania and West Virginia. In December 2018, the Company sold 100% of its Fayetteville Shale
assets.

For the three months ended
March 31, 2019

(in millions) 2019 2018
Northeast Appaachia $ 348 $ 327
Southwest Appalachia 193 156
Fayetteville Shale — 152
Other 1 2
Total $ 542 $ 637

Receivables from Contracts with Customers

Thefollowing table reconciles the Company’s receivables from contracts with customersto consolidated accountsreceivable
as presented on the consolidated balance sheet:

(in millions) March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Receivables from contracts with customers $ 297 % 494
Other accounts receivable 93 87

Total accounts receivable $ 390 $ 581

Amounts recognized against the Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts related to receivables arising from contracts
with customers were immaterial for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018. The Company has no contract assets or
contract liabilities associated with its revenues from contracts with customers.

(6) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The following table presents a summary of cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018:

(in millions) March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Cash $ 89 $ 32
Marketable securities 277 169

Total $ 366 $ 201

(1) Consists of government stable value money market funds.
(7) NATURAL GAS AND OIL PROPERTIES

The Company utilizesthe full cost method of accounting for costs related to the exploration, development and acquisition of
natural gas and oil properties. Under this method, all such costs (productive and nonproductive), including salaries, benefits and
other internal costs directly attributable to these activities, are capitalized on a country-by-country basis and amortized over the
estimated lives of the properties using the units-of-production method. These capitalized costs are subject to a ceiling test that
limits such pooled costs, net of applicable deferred taxes, to the aggregate of the present value of future net revenues attributable
to proved natural gas, oil and NGL reserves discounted at 10% (standardized measure). Any costs in excess of the ceiling are
written off as a non-cash expense. The expense may not be reversed in future periods, even though higher natural gas, oil and
NGL prices may subsequently increase the ceiling. Companies using the full cost method are required to use the average quoted
price from the first day of each month from the previous 12 months, including the impact of derivatives designated for hedge
accounting, to calculate the ceiling value of their reserves.

Using the average quoted price from the first day of each month from the previous 12 months for Henry Hub natural gas of
$3.07 per MMBtu, West Texas Intermediate oil of $63.00 per barrel and NGLs of $17.65 per barrel, adjusted for differentials, the
Company’s net book value of its United States natural gas and oil properties did not exceed the ceiling amount at March 31,
2019. The Company had no derivative positions that were designated for hedge accounting as of March 31, 2019. Decreasesin
market prices as well as changes in production rates, levels of reserves, evaluation of costs excluded from amortization, future
development costs and production costs could result in future ceiling test impairments.

Using the average quoted price from the first day of each month from the previous 12 months for Henry Hub natural gas of
$3.00 per MMBtu, West Texas Intermediate oil of $49.94 per barrel and NGLs of $14.90 per barrel, adjusted for differentials, the
Company’s net book value of its United States natural gas and oil properties did not exceed the ceiling amount at March 31,
2018. The Company had no derivative positions that were designated for hedge accounting as of March 31, 2018.
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(8) EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per common share is computed by dividing net income attributable to common stock by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during thereportable period. Thediluted earningsper sharecal culation addsto theweighted
average number of common shares outstanding: the incremental shares that would have been outstanding assuming the exercise
of dilutive stock options, thevesting of unvested restricted shares of common stock, performance unitsand the assumed conversion
of mandatory convertible preferred stock. An antidilutiveimpact isan increasein earnings per share or areduction in net loss per
share resulting from the conversion, exercise or contingent issuance of certain securities.

In January 2015, the Company issued 34,500,000 depositary sharesthat entitled the holder to aproportional fractional interest
in the rights and preferences of the mandatory convertible preferred stock, including conversion, dividend, liquidation and voting
rights. The mandatory convertible preferred stock had the non-forfeitable right to participate on an as-converted basis at the
conversion rate then in effect in any common stock dividends declared and, therefore, was considered a participating
security. Accordingly, it has been included in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share, pursuant to the two-class
method. Inthe calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to common sharehol ders, earnings are allocated to participating
securities based on actual dividend distributions received plus a proportionate share of undistributed net income attributable to
common shareholders, if any, after recognizing distributed earnings. The Company’s participating securities do not participatein
undistributed net losses because they are not contractually obligated to do so. On January 12, 2018, all outstanding shares of
mandatory convertible preferred stock converted to 74,998,614 shares of the Company’s common stock.

During the second half of 2018, the Company repurchased 39,061,269 shares of its outstanding common stock for
approximately $180 million at an average price of $4.63 per share. In the first quarter of 2019, the Company completed its share
repurchase program by purchasing 5,260,687 shares of its outstanding common stock for approximately $21 million at an average
price of $3.84 per share.

The following table presents the computation of earnings per share for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018:

For the three months ended
March 31,
(in millions, except share/per share amounts) 2019 2018
Net income $ 504 $ 208
Participating securities - mandatory convertible preferred stock — 3
Net income attributable to common stock $ 594 $ 205
Number of common shares:
Weighted average outstanding 539,721,751 571,297,804
Issued upon assumed exercise of outstanding stock options — —
Effect of issuance of non-vested restricted common stock 665,435 914,096
Effect of issuance of non-vested performance units 933,301 1,632,559
Weighted average and potential dilutive outstanding 541,320,487 573,844,459
Earnings per common share:
Basic $ 110 $ 0.36
Diluted $ 110 $ 0.36

Thefollowing table presents the common stock shares equivalent excluded from the cal culation of diluted earnings per share
for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, as they would have had an antidilutive effect:

For the three months ended
March 31,
2019 2018
Unexercised stock options 5,128,640 —
Unvested share-based payment 1,881,355 5,292,454
Performance units 260,201 574,944
Mandatory convertible preferred stock — 9,999,815
Total 7,270,196 15,867,213
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(9) DERIVATIVES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company is exposed to volatility in market prices and basis differentials for natural gas, oil and NGLs which impacts
the predictability of its cash flows related to the sale of those commodities. These risks are managed by the Company’s use of
certain derivative financia instruments. Asof March 31, 2019, the Company’s derivativefinancial instruments consisted of fixed
price swaps, two-way costless collars, three-way costless collars, basis swaps, call options and interest rate swaps. A description
of the Company’s derivative financial instrumentsis provided below:

Fixed price swaps

Two-way costless
collars

Three-way costless
collars

Basis swaps

Call options

Interest rate swaps

If the Company sells afixed price swap, the Company receives afixed price for the contract and pays a
floating market price to the counterparty. |f the Company purchases afixed price swap, the Company
receives a floating market price for the contract and pays a fixed price to the counterparty.

Arrangements that contain afixed floor price (purchased put option) and afixed ceiling price (sold call
option) based on an index price which, in aggregate, have no net cost. At the contract settlement date,
(1) if theindex priceis higher than the ceiling price, the Company pays the counterparty the difference
between the index price and ceiling price, (2) if the index price is between the floor and ceiling prices,
no payments are due from either party, and (3) if the index price is below the floor price, the Company
will receive the difference between the floor price and the index price.

Arrangements that contain a purchased put option, a sold call option and a sold put option based on an
index price which, in aggregate, have no net cost. At the contract settlement date, (1) if the index price
is higher than the sold call strike price, the Company pays the counterparty the difference between the
index price and sold call strike price, (2) if the index priceis between the purchased put strike price and
the sold call strike price, no payments are due from either party, (3) if theindex priceis between the sold
put strike price and the purchased put strike price, the Company will receive the difference between the
purchased put strike price and theindex price, and (4) if theindex priceisbelow the sold put strike price,
the Company will receive the difference between the purchased put strike price and the sold put strike
price.

Arrangements that guarantee a price differential for natural gas from a specified delivery point. If the
Company sells a basis swap, the Company receives a payment from the counterparty if the price
differential isgreater thanthe stated termsof the contract and paysthe counterparty if thepricedifferentia
islessthan the stated terms of the contract. 1f the Company purchases a basis swap, the Company pays
the counterparty if the price differential is greater than the stated terms of the contract and receives a
payment from the counterparty if the price differential islessthan the stated terms of the contract.

The Company purchases and sells call options in exchange for a premium. If the Company purchases
acall option, the Company receives from the counterparty the excess (if any) of the market price over
the strike price of the call option at the time of settlement, but if the market priceisbelow the call’ sstrike
price, no payment is due from either party. If the Company sells a call option, the Company pays the
counterparty the excess (if any) of the market price over the strike price of the call option at the time of
settlement, but if the market price is below the call’ s strike price, no payment is due from either party.

Interest rate swaps are used to fix or float interest rates on existing or anticipated indebtedness. The
purpose of theseinstrumentsisto manage the Company’sexisting or anticipated exposureto unfavorable
interest rate changes.

The Company chooses counterpartiesfor itsderivativeinstrumentsthat it believesare creditworthy at thetimethetransactions
are entered into, and the Company actively monitors the credit ratings and credit default swap rates of these counterparties where
applicable. However, there can be no assurance that a counterparty will be able to meet its obligations to the Company. The
Company presents its derivative positions on a gross basis and does not net the asset and liability positions.

Aspart of the Fayetteville Shal esal e, the Company enteredinto certain natural gasderivativepositionswhichweresubsequently
novated to the buyer in conjunction with finalization of the sale. The derivatives that were novated to the buyer are not included

in the tables below.

15



Table of Contents

Thefollowingtablesprovideinformation about the Company’sfinancial instrumentsthat are sensitiveto changesin commodity
prices and that are used to protect the Company’s exposure. None of the financia instruments below are designated for hedge
accounting treatment. The tables present the notional amount, the weighted average contract prices and thefair value by expected
maturity dates as of March 31, 2019:

Financial Protection on Production
Weighted Average Price per MMBtu

Fair Vaue at
Volume Purchased Basis March 31, 2019
(Bcf) Swaps Sold Puts Puts Sold Calls  Differential (in millions)
Natural Gas
2019
Fixed price swaps 195 $ 29 $ — % — 3 — 3 — 23
Two-way costless collars a4 — — 2.78 292 — 3
Three-way costless collars 101 — 2.46 2.88 3.22 — 13
Total 340 $ 39
2020
Fixed price swaps 24 $ 283 $ — 3 — 3 — 3 — 3 3
Three-way costless collars 122 — 2.35 2.68 2.96 — 2
Total 146 $ 1
2021
Three-way costless collars 37 $ — $ 235 $ 260 $ 293 $ — % @)
Basis Swaps
2019 8 $ — — 3 — 3 — % (050 $ (13)
2020 59 — — — — (0.44) (8)
Total 144 $ (22)
Weighted Average Strike Price per Bbl Fair Value at
Volume Purchased March 31, 2019
(MBbls) Swaps Sold Puts Puts Sold Calls (in millions)
Oil
2019
Fixed price swaps® 21 $ 6213 $ — 3 — $ — $ 1
Two-way costless collars 248 — — 65.00 72.30 1
Three-way costless collars 412 — 45.00 55.00 63.67 —
Total 1,581 $ 2
2020
Fixed price swaps 366 $ 6568 $ — $ — $ — 3 3
Two-way costless collars 366 — — 60.00 69.80 2
Total 732 $ 5
Propane
2019
Fixed price swaps 2028 $ 3125 $ — $ — $ — 3 7
2020
Fixed price swaps 824 $ 2735 $ — $ — 3 — 3 =
Two-way costless collars 366 — — 25.20 29.40 —
Total 1,190 $ =
Ethane
2019
Fixed price swaps 2,778 $ 1390 $ — $ — $ — 3 10
2020
Fixed price swaps 732 $ 1349 $ — $ — $ — 3 2

(1) Includes 206 MBbls of purchased fixed price oil swaps hedged at $69.10 per barrel with afair value of ($2) million and 1,127 MBbls of sold fixed price
oil swaps hedged at $63.41 with afair value of $3 million.
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Other Derivative Contracts
Weighted Average Fair Vaue at

Volume Strike Price per March 31, 2019
(Bef) MMBtu (in millions)
Purchased Call Options — Natural Gas
2019 30 $ 350 $ —
2020 68 3.63 3
2021 57 3.52 3
Total 155 $ 6
Sold Call Options — Natural Gas
2019 39 % 350 $ 1)
2020 137 3.39 (10)
2021 114 3.33 (9)
Total 290 $ (20)
Weighted Average o ) Fair Value at
Volume Strike Price per Basis Differential March 31, 2019
(Bcf) MMBtu per MMBtu ($ in millions)
Storage @
2019
Purchased fixed price swaps 1% 287 $ — $ —
Purchased basis swaps 1 — (0.53) —
Total $ —
2020
Fixed price swap 1 % 314 $ — $ =

(1) The Company has entered into certain derivatives to protect the value of volumes of natural gasinjected into a storage facility that will be withdrawn at a
later date.

At March 31, 2019, the net fair value of the Company’sfinancial instruments related to commodities was a $30 million asset.
The net fair value of the Company’s interest rate swaps was a $1 million asset as of March 31, 2019.

As of March 31, 2019, the Company had no positions designated for hedge accounting treatment. Gains and losses on
derivatives that are not designated for hedge accounting treatment, or do not meet hedge accounting requirements, are recorded
asacomponent of gain (1oss) on derivativesonthe consolidated statementsof operations. Accordingly, thegain (loss) onderivatives
component of the statement of operations reflects the gain and losses on both settled and unsettled derivatives. The Company
calculates gains and losses on settled derivatives as the summation of gains and |osses on positions which have settled within the
reporting period. Only the settled gains and losses are included in the Company’s realized commodity price calculations.

The Company isaparty to interest rate swapsthat were entered into to mitigate the Company’sexposureto vol atility ininterest
rates. The interest rate swaps have anotional amount of $170 million and expire in June 2020. The Company did not designate
the interest rate swaps for hedge accounting treatment. Changes in the fair value of the interest rate swaps are included in gain
(loss) on derivatives on the consolidated statements of operations.
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The balance sheet classification of the assets and liabilities related to derivative financial instruments (none of which are
designated for hedge accounting treatment) is summarized below as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018:

Derivative Assets

(in millions)
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:

Balance Sheet Classification

Fair Vaue

March 31, 2019

December 31, 2018

Fixed price swaps — natural gas Derivative assets $ 25 $ 32
Fixed price swaps— oil Derivative assets 5 13
Fixed price swaps — propane Derivative assets 7 11
Fixed price swaps— ethane Derivative assets 11 7
Two-way costless collars — natural gas Derivative assets 5 11
Two-way costless collars — ail Derivative assets 2 6
Three-way costless collars — natural gas Derivative assets 25 41
Three-way costless collars— oil Derivative assets 1 —
Basis swaps — natural gas Derivative assets 2 8
Purchased call options— natural gas Derivative assets 3 @ —
Interest rate swaps Derivative assets 1 1
Fixed price swaps— natural gas Other long-term assets 4 6
Fixed price swaps — oil Other long-term assets 2 6
Fixed price swaps — ethane Other long-term assets 1 1
Two-way costless collars — ail Other long-term assets 2 5
Three-way costless collars — natural gas Other long-term assets 28 34
Basis swaps — natural gas Other long-term assets — 3
Purchased call options— natural gas Other long-term assets 4 6

Total derivative assets $ 128 $ 191

Derivative Liabilities
Balance Sheet Classification Fair Value

(in millions)
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:

March 31, 2019

December 31, 2018

Purchased fixed price swap — oil Derivative liabilities $ 2 $ 6
Fixed price swaps — natural gas Derivative liabilities 3 9
Fixed price swaps — oil Derivative liabilities 1 —
Fixed price swaps — ethane Derivative liabilities — 3
Two-way costless collars — natural gas Derivative liabilities 2 7
Two-way costless collars — ail Derivative liabilities 1 —
Three-way costless collars — natural gas Derivative liabilities 17 33
Three-way costless collars — oil Derivative liabilities 1 —
Basis swaps — natural gas Derivative liabilities 16 18
Sold call options— natural gas Derivative liabilities 7 3
Fixed price swaps — natural gas Other long-term liabilities — 1
Two-way costless collars — ail Other long-term liabilities — 1
Three-way costless collars — natural gas Other long-term liabilities 27 35
Basis swap — natural gas Other long-term liabilities 7 4
Sold call options— natural gas Other long-term liabilities 13 19

Total derivative liabilities $ 97 $ 139

(2) Includes $1 million in premiums paid related to certain natural gas purchased call options recognized as acomponent of derivative assets within current assets
on the consolidated balance sheet at March 31, 2019. As certain natural gas purchased call options settle, the premium will be amortized and recognized as a
component of gain (loss) on derivatives on the consolidated statements of operations.
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Thefollowing tables summarize the before-tax effect of the Company’s derivative instruments on the consolidated statements

of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018:

Unsettled Gain (Loss) on Derivatives Recognized in Earnings

Consolidated Statement of Operations
Classification of Gain (Los) For the three months ended March 31,

Derivative Instrument on Derivatives, Unsettled 2019 2018
(in millions)

Purchased fixed price swaps— oil Gain (Loss) on Derivatives $ 4 % —
Fixed price swaps — natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (2) 3)
Fixed price swaps— oil Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (13) —
Fixed price swaps — propane Gain (Loss) on Derivatives 4) 3
Fixed price swaps — ethane Gain (Loss) on Derivatives 7 —
Two-way costless collars — natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (1) 3
Two-way costless collars — oil Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (7) —
Three-way costless collars — natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives 2 (5)
Basis swaps — natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (20) 20
Purchased call options— natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives — 16
Sold call options— natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives 2 (39
Interest rate swaps Gain (Loss) on Derivatives — 2

Total gain (loss) on unsettled derivatives $ 22) $ 2

Settled Gain (Loss) on Derivatives Recognized in Earnings @

Consolidated Statement of Operations oy the three months ended March 31,

Classification of Gain (Loss)

Derivative Instrument on Derivatives, Settled 2019 2018
(in millions)

Purchased fixed price swaps — ail Gain (Loss) on Derivatives $ @ $ =
Sold fixed price swaps — natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (6) —
Sold fixed price swaps — oil Gain (Loss) on Derivatives 2 —
Sold fixed price swaps — propane Gain (Loss) on Derivatives 2 —
Sold fixed price swaps — ethane Gain (Loss) on Derivatives 1 —
Two-way costless collars — natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (1) 4
Two-way costless collars — ail Gain (Loss) on Derivatives 1 —
Three-way costless collars — natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives 4) 7
Sold basis swaps — natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (4) (21)
Purchased call options— natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives — 2
Sold call options— natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives — Q)

Total loss on settled derivatives $ (10 $ 9)

Total loss on derivatives $ (32) $ (7)

(1) The Company calculates gain (loss) on derivatives, settled, as the summation of gains and losses on positions that settled within the period.

@

(2) Includes $1 million amortization of premiums paid related to certain natural gas call options for the three months ended March 31, 2018, which isincluded

in gain (loss) on derivatives on the consolidated statements of operations.

19



Table of Contents

(10) RECLASSIFICATIONS FROM ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Inthefirst quarter of 2019, changesin accumulated other comprehensive income related to the Company’s pension and other
postretirement benefitswereimmaterial. Thefollowing tablesdetail the components of accumulated other comprehensiveincome
and the related tax effects for the three months ended March 31, 2019:

R Pension and Other Foreign
(in millions) Postretirement Currency Total

Beginning balance December 31, 2018 $ 22) $ 14) $ (36)
Other comprehensive income before reclassifications — — —
Amounts reclassified from other comprehensive income — — —
Net current-period other comprehensive income — — —
Ending balance March 31, 2019 $ (22) $ (14 $ (36)

(1) Seeseparate table below for details about these reclassifications.

Details about Accumulated Other Affected Line Item in the Amount Reclassified from Accumulated
Comprehensive Income Consolidated Statement of Operations Other Comprehensive Income

For the three months ended
March 31, 2019

(in millions)
Pension and other postretirement:
Amortization of prior service cost and net gain® Other Income (Loss), Net $ —
Benefit from income taxes —
Net income $ —
Total reclassifications for the period Net income $ —

(1) SeeNote 15 for additional details regarding the Company’s pension and other postretirement benefit plans.
(11) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Thecarryingamountsand estimated fair val uesof the Company’ sfinancial instrumentsasof March 31, 2019 and December 31,
2018 were asfollows:

March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(in millions) Amount Value Amount Value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 366 $ 366 $ 201 $ 201
2018 revolving credit facility due April 2023 — — — —
Senior notes® 2,342 2,352 2,342 2,190
Derivative instruments, net 31 @ 31 @ 52 52

(1) Excludes unamortized debt issuance costs and debt discounts.

(2) Includes $1 million in premiums paid related to certain natural gas purchased call options recognized as a component of derivative assets within current
assets on the consolidated balance sheet.

Thefair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to val uation techniques used to measure fair value. As presented in the tables
below, this hierarchy consists of three broad levels:

Level 1 valuations - Consist of unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities and have the
highest priority.

Level 2 valuations - Consist of quoted market information for the calculation of fair market value.
Level 3 valuations - Consist of internal estimates and have the lowest priority.

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, including marketabl e securities, accounts receivable, other current assets,
accounts payable and other current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets approximate fair value because of their short-
term nature. For debt and derivative instruments, the following methods and assumptions were used to estimate fair value:

Debt: Thefair values of the Company’s senior notes were based on the market value of the Company’s publicly traded debt
as determined based on the market prices of the Company’s senior notes. Theseinstrumentswere previously classified asaLevel
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2 measurement but substantially all senior notes were updated to a Level 1 measurement in the second quarter of 2018 as the
market activity of the Company’s debt has resulted in timely quoted prices. The 4.05% Senior Notes due January 2020 remain a
Level 2 measurement due to relative market inactivity.

The carrying values of the borrowings under the Company’srevolving credit facility (to the extent utilized) approximatesfair
value because the interest rate is variable and reflective of market rates. The Company considers the fair value of its revolving
credit facility to be aLevel 1 measurement on the fair value hierarchy.

Derivative Instruments: Thefair value of all derivativeinstrumentsisthe amount at which theinstrument could be exchanged
currently between willing parties. The amounts are based on quoted market prices, best estimates obtained from counterparties
and an option pricing model, when necessary, for price option contracts.

TheCompany hasclassifieditsderivativesinto theselevel sdepending uponthe datautilized to determinetheir fair values. The
Company’s fixed price swaps (Level 2) are estimated using third-party discounted cash flow calculations using the NYMEX
futuresindex for natural gasand oil derivativesand Oil Pricelnformation Service(“ OPIS") for ethaneand propanederivatives. The
Company utilizes discounted cash flow models for valuing its interest rate derivatives (Level 2). The net derivative values
attributable to the Company’s interest rate derivative contracts as of March 31, 2019 are based on (i) the contracted notional
amounts, (ii) active market-quoted L ondon Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) yield curvesand (iii) the applicable credit-adjusted
risk-free rate yield curve.

The Company’s call options, two-way costless collars and three-way costless collars (Level 2) are valued using the Black-
Scholesmodel, anindustry standard option valuation model that takesinto account i nputssuch ascontract terms, including maturity,
and market parameters, including assumptions of the NYMEX and OPIS futures index, interest rates, volatility and credit
worthiness. The Company’s basis swaps (Level 2) are estimated using third-party calculations based upon forward commodity
pricecurves. Theseinstrumentswere previously classified asal evel 3 measurement inthefair value hierarchy but were updated
to aLevel 2 measurement in the second quarter of 2018 asaresult of the Company’s ability to derive volatility inputs and forward
commodity price curves from directly observable sources.

Inputs to the Black-Scholes model, including the volatility input, are obtained from a third-party pricing source, with
independent verification of the most significant inputs on amonthly basis. Anincrease (decrease) in volatility would result in an
increase (decrease) in fair value measurement, respectively.
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Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on arecurring basis are summarized below:

March 31, 2019
Fair Value Measurements Using:

Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant Assets
Active Markets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs  (Liabilities) at
(in millions) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value
Assets
Fixed price swap — natural gas $ — $ 29 % — $ 29
Fixed price swap — oil — 7 — 7
Fixed price swap — propane — 7 — 7
Fixed price swap — ethane — 12 — 12
Two-way costless collar — natural gas — 5 — 5
Two-way costless collar — ail — 4 — 4
Three-way costless collar — natural gas — 53 — 53
Three-way costless collar - oil — 1 — 1
Basis swap — natural gas — 2 — 2
Purchased call option — natural gas ™ — 7 — 7
Interest rate swap — 1 — 1
Liabilities
Purchase fixed price swap — oil — ) — )
Fixed price swap — natural gas — ?3) — 3)
Fixed price swap — oil — Q) — 1)
Two-way costless collar — natural gas — ) — 2)
Two-way costless collar — ail — Q) — 1)
Three-way costless collar — natural gas — (44) = (44)
Three-way costless collar — oil — Q) — 1)
Basis swap — natural gas — (23) — (23)
Sold call option — natural gas — (20) — (20)
Total $ — $ 31 $ — 3 31

(2) Includes $1 million in premiums paid related to certain natural gas purchased call options recognized as a component of derivative assets within current assets
on the consolidated balance sheet at March 31, 2019. As certain natural gas purchased call options settle, the premium will be amortized and recognized as a
component of gain (loss) on derivatives on the consolidated statements of operations.

December 31, 2018
Fair Value Measurements Using:

Quoted Pricesin Significant Other Significant Assets
Active Markets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs (Liabilities) at
(in millions) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value
Assets
Fixed price swap — natural gas $ — $ 38 $ — $ 38
Fixed price swap — oil — 19 — 19
Fixed price swap — propane — 11 — 11
Fixed price swap — ethane — 8 — 8
Two-way costless collar — natural gas — 11 — 11
Two-way costless collar — ail — 11 — 11
Three-way costless collar — natural gas — 75 — 75
Basis swap — natural gas — 11 — 11
Purchased call option — natural gas — 6 — 6
Interest rate swap = 1 — 1
Liabilities
Purchase fixed price swap — oil — (6) — (6)
Fixed price swap — natural gas — (20) — (10
Fixed price swap — ethane — 3 — (©)]
Two-way costless collar — natural gas — ()] — )
Two-way costless collar — ail — @ — @
Three-way costless collar — natural gas — (68) — (68)
Basis swap — natural gas — (22) — (22
Sold call option — natural gas — (22) — (22
Total $ — 3 52 $ — 3 52
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The table below presents reconciliations for the change in net fair value of derivative assets and liabilities measured at fair
valueon arecurring basi susing significant unobservableinputs(Level 3) for thethreemonthsended March 31,2019and 2018. The
fair valuesof Level 3derivativeinstrumentswereestimated using proprietary val uation model sthat utilized both market observable
and unobservable parameters. Level 3 instruments presented in the table consisted of net derivatives valued using pricing models
incorporating assumptions that, in the Company’s judgment, reflected reasonabl e assumptions a marketplace participant would
have used as of March 31, 2018. Commodity derivatives previously presented asLevel 3weretransferredto Level 2 inthe second
quarter of 2018 as the Company moved from using proprietary volatility inputs and forward curves to more widely available
published information, increasing market observability.

For the three months ended
March 31,
(in millions) 2019 2018
Balance at beginning of period $ — 3 22
Total gains (losses):
Included in earnings — 9)
Settlements @ — 9
Transfers into/out of Level 3 = —
Balance at end of period $ — $ 22
Changein gains (losses) included in earnings relating to derivatives still held as of March 31 $ — $ =

(1) Includes $1 million amortization of premiums paid related to certain natural gas call options for the three months ended March 31, 2018.
(12) DEBT

The components of debt as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 consisted of the following:

March 31, 2019

Unamortized Unamortized
(in millions) Debt Instrument Issuance Expense Debt Discount Total
Current portion of long-term debt:
4.05% Senior Notes due January 2020 $ 52 % — 3 — 3 52
Total current portion of long-term debt $ 52 % = $ — 3 52
Long-term debit:
Variable rate (3.923% at March 31, 2019) 2018 $ — % — @ 3 — 3 —
revolving credit facility, due April 2023
4.10% Senior Notes due March 2022 213 (1) — 212
4.95% Senior Notes due January 2025 ® 927 7 1) 919
7.50 % Senior Notes due April 2026 650 (8) — 642
7.75 % Senior Notes due October 2027 500 (6) — 494
Total long-term debt $ 2290 $ 22) $ @ $ 2,267
Total debt $ 2342 $ 22 $ @ 3 2,319
December 31, 2018
o Unamortized Unamortized
(in millions) Debt Instrument | ssuance Expense Debt Discount Total
Long-term debt:
Variable rate (3.920% at December 31, 2018) 2018  $ — % — @ 3 — 3 —
term loan facility, due April 2023
4.05% Senior Notes due January 2020® 52 — — 52
4.10% Senior Notes due March 2022 213 (0] — 212
4.95% Senior Notes due January 2025 927 7 2 919
7.50% Senior Notes due April 2026 650 (8) — 642
7.75% Senior Notes due October 2027 500 (7) — 493
Total long-term debt $ 2342 $ 23) % QD $ 2,318

(1) InFebruary and June 2016, Moody’s and S& P downgraded certain senior notes, increasing the interest rates by 175 basis points effective July 2016. Asa
result of the downgrades, interest rates increased to 5.80% for the 2020 Notes and 6.70% for the 2025 Notes. In April and May 2018, S& P and Moody's
upgraded certain senior notes. As aresult of these upgrades, interest rates decreased to 5.30% for the 2020 Notes and 6.20% for the 2025 Notes effective
July 2018. The first coupon payment to the bondholders at the lower interest rate was paid in January 2019.
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(2) AtMarch 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, unamortized issuance expense of $10 million and $11 million, respectively, associated with the 2018 revolving
credit facility is classified as other long-term assets on the consolidated balance sheets.
Credit Facilities

2018 Revolving Credit Facility

In April 2018, the Company replaced its 2016 credit facility (which consisted of a $1,191 million secured term loan and an
unsecured $743 million revolving credit facility) with anew revolving credit facility (the “ 2018 credit facility”). The 2018 credit
facility has an aggregate maximum revolving credit amount of $3.5 billion and, at March 31, 2019, had a current borrowing base
of $2.1 billion with a current aggregate commitment of $2.0 billion. The borrowing base is subject to redetermination twice a
year in April and October. On April 4, 2019, the banks participating in the 2018 credit facility reaffirmed the borrowing base of
$2.1 billion. The permitted lien provisionsin the senior note indentures currently limit liens securing indebtedness to the greater
of $2.0 billion and 25% of adjusted consolidated net tangible assets. The 2018 credit facility maturesin April 2023 and is secured
by substantially all of the assets owned by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Loans under the 2018 credit facility are subject to varying rates of interest based on whether the loan is a Eurodollar loan or
an alternate base rate loan. Eurodollar loans bear interest at the Eurodollar rate, which is adjusted LIBOR for such interest period
plus the applicable margin (as those terms are defined in the 2018 credit facility documentation). The applicable margin for
Eurodollar loans under the 2018 credit facility ranges from 1.50% to 2.50% based on the Company’s utilization of the borrowing
base under the 2018 credit facility. Alternate baserateloansbear interest at the alternate base rate plus the applicable margin. The
applicable margin for alternate base rate |oans under the 2018 credit facility ranges from 0.50% to 1.50% based on the Company’s
utilization of the borrowing base under the 2018 credit facility.

The 2018 credit facility contains customary representations and warranties and contains covenants including, among others,
the following:

e aprohihition against incurring debt, subject to permitted exceptions;

e arestriction on creating liens on assets, subject to permitted exceptions;

e restrictions on mergers and asset dispositions;

e restrictions on use of proceeds, investments, transactions with affiliates, or change of principal business; and
« maintenance of the following financial covenants, commencing with the fiscal quarter ending June 30, 2018:

1.  Minimum current ratio of no lessthan 1.00 to 1.00, whereby current ratio is defined as the Company’s consolidated
current assets (including unused commitments under the credit agreement, but excluding non-cash derivative assets)
to consolidated current liabilities (excluding non-cash derivative obligations and current maturities of long-term
debt).

2. Maximum total net leverageratio of no lessthan (i) with respect to each fiscal quarter ending during the period from
June 30, 2018 through March 31, 2019, 4.50 to 1.00, (ii) with respect to each fiscal quarter ending during the period
from June 30, 2019 through March 31, 2020, 4.25 to 1.00, and (iii) with respect to each fiscal quarter ending on or
after June 30, 2020, 4.00 to 1.00. Total net leverageratio is defined as total debt |ess cash on hand (up to the lesser
of 10% of credit limit or $150 million) divided by consolidated EBITDAX for the last four consecutive
quarters. EBITDAX, as defined in the Company’s 2018 credit agreement, excludes the effects of interest expense,
depreciation, depletion and amortization, income tax, any non-cash impacts from impairments, certain non-cash
hedging activities, stock-based compensation expense, non-cash gains or |osses on asset sales, unamortized issuance
cost, unamortized debt discount and certain restructuring costs.

The 2018 credit facility contains customary events of default that include, among other things, the failure to comply with the
financial covenantsdescribed above, non-payment of principal , interest or fees, viol ation of covenants, inaccuracy of representations
and warranties, bankruptcy and insolvency events, material judgments and cross-defaultsto material indebtedness. If an event of
default occursand is continuing, all amounts outstanding under the 2018 credit facility may becomeimmediately due and payable.
As of March 31, 2019, the Company was in compliance with all of the covenants of the credit agreement.

Each United States domestic subsidiary of the Company for which the Company owns 100% guarantees the 2018 credit
facility. Pursuant to requirements under the indentures governing its senior notes, each subsidiary that became a guarantor of the
2018 credit facility also became a guarantor of each of the Company’s senior notes. See Note 19 for the Company’s Condensed
Consolidated Financial |nformation, presented in accordance with Rule 3-10 of Regulation S-X.

As of March 31, 2019, the Company had $172 million in letters of credit and no borrowings outstanding under the 2018
revolving credit facility.
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Senior Notes

In January 2015, the Company completed a public offering of $850 million aggregate principal amount of its 4.05% senior
notes due 2020 (the “2020 Notes’) and $1.0 billion aggregate principal amount of its 4.95% senior notes due 2025 (the “2025
Notes’ together with the 2020 Notes, the “Notes’). The interest rates on the Notes are determined based upon the public bond
ratingsfrom Moody’s and S& P. Downgrades on the Notes from either rating agency increaseinterest costs by 25 basis points per
downgrade level and upgrades decrease interest costs by 25 basis points per upgrade level, up to the stated coupon rate, on the
following semi-annual bond interest payment. In February and June 2016, Moody’s and S& P downgraded the Notes, increasing
the interest rates by 175 basis points effective July 2016. As a result of these downgrades, interest rates increased to 5.80% for
the 2020 Notes and 6.70% for the 2025 Notes. In the event of future downgrades, the coupons for this series of notes are capped
at 6.05% and 6.95%, respectively. The first coupon payment to the bondholders at the higher interest rates was paid in January
2017. S&P and Moody’s upgraded the Notes in April and May 2018, respectively. As aresult of these upgrades, interest rates
decreased to 5.30% for the 2020 Notes and 6.20% for the 2025 Notes effective July 2018. The first coupon payment to the
bondholders at the lower interest rates was paid in January 2019.

(13) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Operating Commitments and Contingencies

Asof March 31, 2019, the Company’s contractual obligations for demand and similar charges under firm transportation and
gathering agreementsto guarantee access capacity on natural gasand liquids pi pelinesand gathering systemstotal ed approximately
$9.0hillion, $1.4 billion of which related to access capacity on future pipeline and gathering infrastructure projectsthat still require
the granting of regulatory approvals and additional construction efforts. The Company also had guarantee obligations of up to
$403 million of that amount. As of March 31, 2019, future payments under non-cancelable firm transportation and gathering
agreements were as follows:

Payments Due by Period
Lessthan 1 More than 8
(in millions) Total Year lto3Years 3to5Years 5to8Years Years
Infrastructure currently in service $ 7583 $ 723 $ 1304 $ 1135 $ 1520 $ 2,901
Pending regulatory approval and/or construction ® 1,411 4 113 167 285 842
Total transportation charges $ 8994 $ 727 $ 1417 $ 1302 $ 1,805 $ 3,743

(1) Based on estimated in-service dates as of March 31, 2019.

In December 2018, the Company closed onthe Fayetteville Shalesale. The Company retai ned certain contractual commitments
related to firm transportation, with the buyer obligated to pay thetransportation provider directly for thesecharges. Asof March 31,
2019, approximately $188 million of these contractual commitments remain of which the Company will reimburse the buyer for
certain of these potential obligations up to approximately $94 million through 2020 depending on the buyer’s actual use, and has
recorded a $78 million liability for the estimated future payments, down from $88 million recorded at December 31, 2018.

In the first quarter of 2019, the Company agreed to purchase firm transportation with pipelines in the Appalachian Basin
starting in 2021 and running through 2032 totaling $357 million in total contractual commitments, which is presented in the table
above; the seller has agreed to reimburse $133 million of these commitments.

Environmental Risk

The Company is subject to laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment. Environmental and cleanup
related costs of a non-capital nature are accrued when it is both probable that aliability has been incurred and when the amount
can be reasonably estimated. Management believes any future remediation or other compliance related costs will not have a
material effect on the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company.

Litigation

The Company is subject to various litigation, claims and proceedings that have arisen in the ordinary course of business, such
as for alleged breaches of contract, miscalculation of royalties, employment matters, traffic accidents, pollution, contamination,
encroachment on others' property or nuisance. The Company accrues for such items when a liability is both probable and the
amount can be reasonably estimated. It isnot possible at thistime to estimate the amount of any additional loss, or range of loss,
that is reasonably possible, but, based on the nature of the claims, management believes that current litigation, claims and
proceedings, individually or in aggregate and after taking into account insurance, are not likely to have amaterial adverse impact
onthe Company’sfinancial position, results of operationsor cash flows, for the period in which the effect of that outcome becomes
reasonably estimable. Many of these matters are in early stages, so the allegations and the damage theories have not been fully
developed, and are all subject to inherent uncertainties; therefore, management’s view may change in the future.
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Arkansas Royalty Litigation

The Company has been a defendant in three certified class actions alleging that the Company underpaid lessors of landsin
Arkansas by deducting from royalty payments costsfor gathering, transportation and compression of natural gasin excess of what
is permitted by the relevant leases. Two of the these class actions were filed in Arkansas state courts and the third in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of Arkansas. The Company denied liability in al these cases. Under the agreement
for the sale of the Company’s properties in the Fayetteville Shale, the Company retained responsibility for these class actions.

In June 2017, the jury returned averdict in favor of the Company on all countsin Smith v. SEECO, Inc. et al., the class action
inthefederal court, whose plaintiff class comprisesthe vast majority of thelessorsinthesecases. The plaintiff had asserted claims
for, among other things, breach of contract, fraud, civil conspiracy, unjust enrichment and violation of certain Arkansas
statutes. Following the verdict, the court entered judgment in favor of the Company on all claims. The trial court denied the
plaintiff’smotionfor anew trial, and the plaintiff appeal ed to the United States Court of Appeal sfor theEighth Circuit. Independent
of the plaintiff’s appeal, severa different parties sought to intervene in the Smith case prior to or shortly after trial, and have
appealed the trial court’s order denying their request to intervene. Oral argument occurred in January 2019. On April 23, 2019,
the Court of Appeals affirmed thetria court’s order denying all requeststo intervenein the case, and, in aseparate order, affirmed
thetrial court’sjudgment in favor of the Company on al claims.

In the second quarter of 2018, the Company entered into an agreement to settle another of the class actions, which has been
pending in the Circuit Court of Conway County, Arkansas under the caption Snow et al. v. SEECO, Inc., et al. The settlement
received final approval by the court during the third quarter of 2018, and the deadline to appeal the order approving the settlement
passed without any appealsfiled. Theamount of the settlement isreflected in the Company’ s consolidated statement of operations
for the second quarter of 2018 and was paid early in the fourth quarter of 2018. Thethird class action was dismissed in the second
quarter of 2018.

The Smith and the Snow cases cover al affected lessors, except a small percentage who opted out. Most of those have filed
separate actions. The Company does not expect those casesto have amaterial adverse effect on the results of operations, financial
position or cash flows of the Company. Additionally, it is not possible at this time to estimate the amount of any additional loss,
or range of loss, that is reasonably possible.

Indemnifications

The Company provides certain indemnificationsin relation to dispositions of assets. These indemnificationstypically relate
to disputes, litigation or tax matters existing at the date of disposition. The Company likewise obtains indemnification for future
matterswhen it sells assets, although there is no assurance the buyer will be capable of performing those obligations. No material
liahilities have been recognized in connection with these indemnifications.

(14) INCOME TAXES

The Company'’s effective tax rate was approximately (254)% and 0% for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively, primarily asaresult of therelease of valuation allowances previously recorded agai nst deferred tax assets. A valuation
allowance for deferred tax assets, including net operating losses, is recognized when it is more likely than not that some or all of
the benefit from the deferred tax assets will not berealized. To assess that likelihood, the Company uses estimates and judgment
regarding future taxable income, and considers the tax consequences in the jurisdiction where such taxable income is generated,
to determinewhether avaluation allowanceisrequired. Such evidencecaninclude current financial position, resultsof operations,
both actual and forecasted, the reversal of deferred tax liabilities and tax planning strategies as well as the current and forecasted
business economics of the oil and gas industry.

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company maintained a full valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets
based on its conclusion, considering all available evidence (both positive and negative), that it was more likely than not that the
deferred tax assets would not be realized. A significant item of objective negative evidence considered was the cumulative pre-
tax loss incurred over the three-year period ended December 31, 2018, primarily due to impairments of proved natural gas and
oil properties recognized in 2015 and 2016. As of the first quarter of 2019, the Company has sustained a three-year cumulative
level of profitability. Based on thisfactor and other positive evidence including forecasted income, the Company concluded that
it ismore likely than not that the deferred tax assets would be realized and rel eased substantially all of the valuation allowance.
Thisresulted in adiscretetax benefit recorded for the period of $426 million. The Company expectsto keep avaluation allowance
of $87 million related to net operating losses in jurisdictionsin which it no longer operates.

In February 2018, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2018-02 amending the FASB Accounting Standards
relating to tax effects in accumulated other comprehensive income. See Note 18 — New Accounting Pronouncements for more
information regarding this update.
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(15) PENSION PLAN AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

TheCompany maintai nsdefined pension and other postretirement benefit plans, which cover substantially al of theCompany’s
employees. Net periodic pension costs include the following components for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018:

Pension Benefits

Consolidated Statements of For the three months ended

Operations Classification of March 31,
(in millions) Net Periodic Benefit Cost 2019 2018
Service cost General and administrative expenses $ 2 % 3
Interest cost Other Income (Loss), Net 1 2
Expected return on plan assets Other Income (Loss), Net ) 2
Amortization of prior service cost Other Income (Loss), Net — —
Amortization of net loss Other Income (Loss), Net 1 —

Net periodic benefit cost $ 2 $ 3

(1) Inthefirst quarter of 2018, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Update No. 2017-07, which requiresthe service cost component to be disaggregated
from the other components of net benefit cost, which are to be presented outside of income from operations. See Note 18 — New A ccounting Pronouncements
for more information regarding this update.

The Company’s other postretirement benefit plan had a net periodic benefit cost of lessthan $1 million and $1 million for the
three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

As of March 31, 2019, the Company has contributed $5 million to the pension and other postretirement benefit plans, and
expectsto contribute an additional $7 milliontoitspension plan during the remainder of 2019. The Company recognized aliability
of $31 millionand $13 millionrelated to itspension and other postretirement benefits, respectively, asof March 31,2019, compared
to aliability of $34 million and $13 million as of December 31, 2018.

The Company maintainsanon-qualified deferred compensati on supplemental retirement savingsplan (“Non-Qualified Plan”)
for certain key employeeswho may elect to defer and contribute aportion of their compensation, as permitted by the Non-Qualified
Plan. Shares of the Company’s common stock purchased under the terms of the Non-Qualified Plan are presented as treasury
stock and totaled 5,115 shares and 10,653 shares at March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respectively.

(16) STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company recognized the following amounts in total employee stock-based compensation costs for the three months
ended March 31, 2019 and 2018:

For the three months ended

March 31,
(in millions) 2019 2018
Stock-based compensation cost — expensed $ 7 % 5
Stock-based compensation cost — capitalized 4 3

The Company’s stock-based compensation is classified as either equity awards or liability awards in accordance with
GAAP. Thefair value of an equity-classified award is determined at the grant date and is amortized to general and administrative
expense and capitalized expense on astraight-line basis over the vesting period of theaward. Thefair value of aliability-classified
award is determined on a quarterly basis beginning at the grant date until final vesting. Changes in the fair value of liability-
classified awards are recorded to general and administrative expense over the vesting period of the award. A portion of thisgeneral
and administrative expenseis capitalized into natural gasand oil properties, included in property and equipment. Generaly, stock
options granted to employees and directors vest ratably over three years from the grant date and expire seven years from the date
of grant. The Company issues shares of restricted stock or restricted stock unitsto employees and directors which generally vest
over four years. Restricted stock, restricted stock units and stock options granted to participants under the 2013 Incentive Plan,
as amended and restated, immediately vest upon death, disability or retirement (subject to a minimum of three years of service).
The Company issues performance unit awards to employees which historically have vested at or over three years.

In December 2018, the Company closed the sale of the equity in certain of its subsidiaries that owned and operated its
Fayetteville Shale E& Pand related midstream gathering assetsin Arkansas. Aspart of thistransaction, most employees associated
with those assets became employees of the buyer although the employment of some was or will be terminated. All affected
employees were offered a severance package, which included a one-time cash payment depending on length of service and, if
applicable, the current value of aportion of equity awards that were forfeited. Stock-based compensation costs recognized prior
to the cancellation as either general and administrative expense or capitalized expense were reversed and the severance payments

27



Table of Contents

were subsequently recognized as restructuring charges for the year ended December 31, 2018 and the three months ended March
31, 2019 on the consolidated statements of operations.

Equity-Classified Awards

The Company recognized the following amounts in employee equity-classified stock-based compensation costs for the three
months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018:

For the three months ended
March 31,
(in millions) 2019 2018
Equity-classified awards — expensed $ 2 % 4
Equity-classified awards — capitalized 1 3

As of March 31, 2019, there was $14 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to the Company’s unvested
equity-classified stock option grants, equity-classified restricted stock grants and equity-classified performance units. This cost
is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of one and a half years.

Equity-Classified Stock Options

Thefollowingtablesummarizesequity-classified stock option activity for thethreemonthsended March 31, 2019 and provides
information for options outstanding and options exercisable as of March 31, 2019:

Number Weighted Average
of Options Exercise Price
(in thousands)
Outstanding at December 31, 2018 5178 $ 17.06
Granted — —
Exercised — $ —
Forfeited or expired (58) $ 15.74
Outstanding at March 31, 2019 5120 $ 17.07
Exercisable at March 31, 2019 4,604 $ 18.16

Equity-Classified Restricted Stock

The following table summarizes equity-classified restricted stock activity for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and
provides information for unvested shares as of March 31, 2019:

Number Weighted Average
of Shares Fair Value
(in thousands)

Unvested shares at December 31, 2018 2717 % 791
Granted 9 % 3.72
Vested (608) $ 8.74
Forfeited (145) $ 8.38
Unvested shares at March 31, 2019 1973 $ 7.61
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Equity-Classified Performance Units

The following table summarizes equity-classified performance unit activity for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and
provides information for unvested units as of March 31, 2019. The performance unit awards granted in 2017 include a market
condition based exclusively on thefair value of the Total Shareholder Return (“ TSR”), ascal culated by aMonte Carlomodel. The
total fair value of the performance units is amortized to compensation expense on a straight line basis over the vesting period of
theaward. The grant date fair value is calculated using the closing price of the Company’s common stock at the grant date.

Number Weighted Average
of Shares ® Fair Value
(in thousands)
Unvested units at December 31, 2018 508 $ 10.01
Granted — % —
Vested @371) $ 9.73
Forfeited (30) $ 10.47
Unvested units at March 31, 2019 197 $ 10.47

(1) Theactual payout of shares may range from a minimum of zero shares to a maximum of two shares per unit contingent upon TSR. The performance
units have a three-year vesting term and the actual disbursement of shares, if any, is determined during the first quarter following the end of the three-year
vesting period.

Liability-Classified Awards

The Company recognized the following amountsin employeeliability-classified stock-based compensation costsfor thethree
months ended March 31, 2019:

For the three months ended March 31,

(in millions) 2019 2018
Liability-classified stock-based compensation cost — expensed $ 5 §$ 1
Liability-classified stock-based compensation cost — capitalized 3 —

Liability-Classified Restricted Stock Units

In thefirst quarter of 2018 and 2019, the Company granted restricted stock units that vest over a period of four yearsand are
payablein either cash or shares at the option of the Compensation Committee of the Company’sBoard of Directors. The Company
has accounted for these as liahility-classified awards, and accordingly changes in the market value of the instruments will be
recorded to general and administrative expense and capitalized expense over the vesting period of the award. As of March 31,
2019, there was $61 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to liability-classified restricted stock units that is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of three years.

Number Weighted Average
of Units Fair Value
(in thousands)

Unvested shares at December 31, 2018 8202 $ 341
Granted 8659 $ 434
Vested (2,120) $ 4.29
Forfeited (504) $ 3.85
Unvested units at March 31, 2019 14,237 $ 4.69

Liability-Classified Performance Units

Inthefirst quarter of 2018 and 2019, the Company granted performance unitsthat vest over athree-year period and are payable
in either cash or shares at the option of the Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors. The Company has
accounted for these as liability-classified awards, and accordingly changes in the fair market value of the instruments will be
recorded to general and administrative expense and capitalized expense over the vesting period of the awards. The performance
unit awardsgrantedin 2018include aperformance condition based on cash flow per debt-adj usted shareand two market conditions,
one based on absolute TSR and the other on relative TSR as compared to a group of the Company’s peers. The performance unit
awards granted in 2019 include a performance condition based on return on average capital employed and two market conditions,
one based on absolute TSR and the other on relative TSR. Thefair values of the two market conditions are calculated by Monte
Carlo models on aquarterly basis. Asof March 31, 2019, there was $19 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related
toliability-classified performanceunits. Thiscostisexpected to berecognized over aweighted-average period of threeyears. The
final value of the performance unit awards is contingent upon the Company’s actual performance against these performance

measures.
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Number Weighted Average
of Shares Fair Vaue
(in thousands)

Unvested shares at December 31, 2018 2803 $ 341
Granted 2757 % 434
Vested — $ —
Forfeited (119) $ 4.65
Unvested units at March 31, 2019 5441 $ 4.69

(17) SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company’s reportable business segments have been identified based on the differences in products or services
provided. Revenues for the E& P segment are derived from the production and sale of natural gas and liquids. The Midstream
segment generates revenue through the marketing of both Company and third-party produced natural gas and liquids volumes.

Prior to December 2018, the Midstream segment included the Company’s natural gas gathering business associated with its
Fayetteville Shale assets. With the closing of the Fayetteville Shale sale in December 2018, the Company’s marketing business
comprises substantially all of the Company’s Midstream segment.

Summarized financial information for the Company’s reportable segments is shown in the following table. The accounting
policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsincluded in
Item 8 of the 2018 Annua Report. Management evaluates the performance of its segments based on operating income, defined
as operating revenues less operating costs. Income before income taxes, for the purpose of reconciling the operating income
amount shown below to consolidated income before income taxes, is the sum of operating income, interest expense, gain (10ss)
on derivatives and other income (loss). The “Other” column includes items not related to the Company’s reportable segments,
including real estate and corporate items.

E&P Midstream Other Total

Three months ended March 31, 2019 (in millions)

Revenues from external customers $ 551 $ 439 $ — $ 990
Intersegment revenues 9) 502 — 493
Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense 110 2 — 112
Operating income 210 @ 3 — 213
Interest expense @ 14 — — 14
Loss on derivatives (32) — — (32)
Other income, net 1 — — 1
Benefit from income taxes @ (426) — — (426)
Assets 5562 @ 342 542 @ 6,446
Capital investments © 325 — — 325
Three months ended March 31, 2018

Revenues from external customers $ 643 $ 277 $ — $ 920
Intersegment revenues (6) 619 — 613
Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense 117 26 @ — 143
Operating income® 238 17 — 255
Interest expense @ 39 — — 39
Loss on derivatives (7) — — )
Other loss, net — 2 — @
Assets 5346 @ 1,217 1,150 © 7,713
Capital investments © 334 4 — 338

(1) Operating income for the E& P segment includes $3 million of restructuring charges for the three months ended March 31, 2019.
(2) Interest expense and the benefit from income taxes by segment is an allocation of corporate amounts as they are incurred at the corporate level.

(3) Includesoffice, technology, water infrastructure, drilling rigsand other ancillary equipment not directly related to natural gasand oil properties. Alsoincludes
deferred tax assets which are an allocation of corporate amounts as they are incurred at the corporate level.

(4) Other assetsrepresent corporate assets not allocated to segments and assets for non-reportable segments. At March 31, 2019 and 2018, other assetsincluded
approximately $366 million and $958 million, respectively, in cash and cash equivalents.

(5) Capital investments include increases of $66 million and $33 million for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, relating to the
change in accrued expenditures between years.

(6) Includesthe impact of Fayetteville Shale-related E& P and Midstream operations which were divested on December 3, 2018.
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(7)  Includes a $10 million impairment related to certain non-core gathering assets.

Included in intersegment revenues of the Midstream segment are $502 million and $576 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively for marketing of the Company’s E& P sales. Corporate assets include cash and cash
equivalents, furniture and fixtures and other assets. Corporate general and administrative costs, depreciation expense and taxes,
other than income taxes, are allocated to the segments.

(18) NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
New Accounting Standards Implemented

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) (“Update 2016-02"),
which seeksto increase transparency and comparability among organizations by, among other things, recognizing | ease assets and
lease liabilities on the balance sheet for |eases classified as operating leases under previous GAAP and disclosing key information
about leasing arrangements. The codification wasamended through additional ASUs. For public entities, Update 2016-02 became
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company
adopted ASC 842 with an effective date of January 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective approach for all leases that existed
at the date of initial application. The Company elected to apply the transition as of the beginning of the period of adoption. For
leasesthat existed at the period of adoption on January 1, 2019, theincremental borrowing rate as of the application date was used
to calculate the present value of remaining lease payments. Upon adoption of ASC 842, the Company recognized a discounted
right of use asset and corresponding lease liability with opening balances of approximately $105 million as of January 1, 2019.
The adoption of the standard did not materially change the Company’s consolidated statement of operations or its consolidated
statement of cash flows. Please refer to Note 4 —“Leases’ for full disclosure.

New Accounting Standards Not Yet Implemented

In June 2016, the FA SB issued A ccounting Standards Update No. 2016-13, Financia Instruments- Credit L osses (Topic 326):
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financia Instruments (“Update 2016-13"). Update 2016-13 replaces the incurred |oss model
with an expected loss model, which is referred to as the current expected credit loss (“CECL”) model. The CECL model is
applicable to the measurement of credit losses on financial assets measured at amortized cost, including but not limited to trade
receivables. The Company isstill performing its evaluation of Update 2016-13, but does not believeit will have amaterial impact
on its consolidated financial statements at thistime.

(19) CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL INFORMATION

In April, 2018, the Company entered into the 2018 credit facility. Pursuant to requirements under the indentures governing
the Company’s senior notes, each 100% owned subsidiary that became a guarantor of the 2018 credit facility also became a
guarantor of each of the Company’s senior notes (the “ Guarantor Subsidiaries’). The Guarantor Subsidiaries also granted liens
and security interests to support their guarantees under the 2018 credit facility but not of the senior notes. These guarantees are
full and unconditional and joint and several among the Guarantor Subsidiaries. Certain of the Company’s operating units which
areaccounted for on aconsolidated basisdo not guarantee the 2018 credit facility and senior notes (“ Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries”).
See Note 12 — Debt for additional information on the Company’s 2018 revolving credit facility and senior notes. At the closing
of the Fayetteville Shale salein December 2018, its subsidiaries being sold were released from these guarantees. See Note 2 for
additional information on the divestiture of the Company’s Fayetteville Shale-related subsidiaries.

Thefollowing financia information reflectsconsolidating financia information of Southwestern Energy Company (the parent
and issuer company), its Guarantor Subsidiaries on a combined basis and the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries on a combined basis,
prepared on the equity basis of accounting. Theinformation is presented in accordance with the requirements of Rule 3-10 under
the SEC’'s Regulation S-X. The financial information may not necessarily be indicative of results of operations, cash flows or
financial position had the Guarantor Subsidiaries operated as independent entities.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in millions)
Three months ended March 31, 2019
Operating Revenues:

Gas saes

Oil sales

NGL sales

Marketing

Other

Operating Costs and Expenses:
Marketing purchases
Operating expenses
General and administrative expenses
Restructuring charges
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Taxes, other than income taxes

Operating Income

Interest Expense, Net

Loss on Derivatives

Other Income, Net

Equity in Earnings of Subsidiaries

Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes
Benefit from Income Taxes
Net Income (Loss)

Net Income (L 0ss)
Other comprehensive income
Comprehensive Income (Lo0ss)

(Unaudited)

Parent

Guarantors

Non-
Guarantors

Eliminations Consolidated

— 430 $ — 3 — 430
— 39 — — 39
— 81 — — 81
— 438 — — 438
— 2 — — 2
— 990 — — 990
— 441 — — 441
— 165 — — 165
— 37 — — 37
— 3 — — 3
— 112 — — 112
— 19 — — 19
— 777 — — 777
— 213 — — 213
14 — — — 14
— (32) — — (32)
— 1 — — 1
608 — — (608) —
594 182 — (608) 168
— (426) — — (426)
594 608 — (608) 594
594 608 $ — 3 (608) $ 594
594 608 $ — 3 (608) $ 594
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in millions)
Three months ended March 31, 2018
Operating Revenues:

Gas saes

Oil sales

NGL sales

Marketing

Gas gathering

Other

Operating Costs and Expenses:
Marketing purchases
Operating expenses
General and administrative expenses
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Taxes, other than income taxes

Operating Income

Interest Expense, Net

Loss on Derivatives

Other Loss, Net

Equity in Earnings of Subsidiaries

Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes
Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes
Net Income (Loss)

Participating securities - mandatory convertible

preferred stock

Net Income (Loss) Attributable to
Common Stock

Net Income (L 0ss)
Other comprehensive income
Comprehensive Income (Loss)

(Unaudited)
Non- N .

Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations  Consolidated
— 540 $ — 3 — 3 540
— 35 — — 35
— 65 — — 65
— 253 — — 253
— 24 — — 24
— 3 — — 3
— 920 — — 920
— 255 — — 255
— 189 — — 189
— 55 — — 55
— 143 — — 143
— 23 — — 23
— 665 — — 665
— 255 — — 255
39 — — — 39
- @) - - @)
— @ — — @
247 — — (247) —
208 247 — (247) 208
208 247 $ — 3 (247) $ 208
3 — — — 3
205 247 % — 3 (247) $ 205
208 247 $ — 3 (247) $ 208
208 247 $ — 3 (247) $ 208
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)
L Non- N .
(in millions) Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations  Consolidated
March 31, 2019 :
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 366 $ — — 3 — 366
Accounts receivable, net — 390 — — 390
Other current assets 11 120 — — 131
Total current assets 377 510 — — 887
Intercompany receivables 7,744 — — (7,744) —
Natural gas and oil properties, using the full cost — 24,433 53 — 24,486
method
Gathering systems — 11 27 — 38
Other 197 312 — — 509
Less: Accumulated depreciation, depletion and (159) (19,947) (56) — (20,162)
amortization
Total property and equipment, net 38 4,809 24 — 4,871
Investments in subsidiaries (equity method) — 23 — (23) —
Other long-term assets 42 646 — — 688
TOTAL ASSETS $ 8,201 $ 5988 $ 24 $ (7,767) $ 6,446
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Accounts payable $ 124 $ 502 $ — 3 — 3 626
Other current liabilities 189 128 — — 317
Total current liabilities 313 630 — — 943
Intercompany payables — 7,743 1 (7,744) —
Long-term debt 2,267 — — — 2,267
Pension and other postretirement liabilities 43 — — — 43
Other long-term liagbilities 47 209 — — 256
Negative carrying amount of subsidiaries, net 2,594 — — (2,594) —
Total long-term liabilities 4,951 209 — (2,594) 2,566
Commitments and contingencies
Total equity (accumulated deficit) 2,937 (2,594) 23 2,571 2,937
TOTAL LIABILITIESAND EQUITY $ 8,201 $ 5988 $ 24 $ (7,767) $ 6,446
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)
L Non- N .
(in millions) Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
December 31, 2018
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 201 $ — $ — 3 — $ 201
Accounts receivable, net 4 577 — — 581
Other current assets 8 166 — — 174
Total current assets 213 743 — — 956
Intercompany receivables 7,932 — — (7,932) —
Natural gas and oil properties, using the full cost — 24,128 52 — 24,180
method
Gathering systems — 11 27 — 38
Other 197 290 — — 487
L ess: Accumulated depreciation, depléetion and (154) (29,840) (55) — (20,049)
amortization
Total property and equipment, net 43 4,589 24 — 4,656
Investments in subsidiaries (equity method) — 24 — (29) —
Other long-term assets 19 166 — — 185
TOTAL ASSETS $ 8,207 $ 5522 $ 24 3% (7,956) $ 5,797
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Accounts payable $ 113 $ 49% $ — % — 3 609
Other current liabilities 115 122 — — 237
Total current liabilities 228 618 — — 846
Intercompany payables — 7,932 — (7,932 —
Long-term debt 2,318 — — — 2,318
Pension and other postretirement liabilities 46 — — — 46
Other long-term liagbilities 54 171 — — 225
Negative carrying amount of subsidiaries, net 3,199 — — (3,199) —
Total long-term liabilities 5,617 171 — (3,199) 2,589
Commitments and contingencies
Total equity (accumulated deficit) 2,362 (3,199) 24 3,175 2,362
TOTAL LIABILITIESAND EQUITY $ 8,207 $ 5522 $ 24 $ (7,956) $ 5,797
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)
Non-
(in millions) Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
Three months ended March 31, 2019
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ~ $ 1,031 $ 19 $ — 3 (608) $ 442
Investing activities:
Capital investments 3 (261) — — (258)
Other — — — — —
Net cash used in investing activities 3 (261) — — (258)
Financing activities
Intercompany activities (850) 242 — 608 —
Change in bank drafts outstanding 3 — — — 3
Purchase of treasury stock (22) — — — (22)
Cash paid for tax withholding Q) — — — ()
Net cash provided by (used in) financing (869) 242 — 608 (29)
activities
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 165 — — — 165
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 201 — — — 201
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 366 $ — $ — $ — $ 366
Three months ended March 31, 2018
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities  $ 183 $ 428 $ — $ (247) $ 364
Investing activities:
Capital investments 5) (297) — — (302)
Other — 8 — — 8
Net cash used in investing activities 5) (289) — — (294)
Financing activities
Intercompany activities (116) (131) — 247 —
Preferred stock dividend 27) — — — 27)
Cash paid for tax withholding (1) — — — Q)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing (144) (131) — 247 (28)
activities
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 34 8 — — 42
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 914 2 — — 916
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 948 $ 10 $ — $ — $ 958

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following updates information as to Southwestern Energy Company’s financial condition provided in our 2018 Annual
Report and analyzesthe changesin the results of operations between the three month periods ended March 31, 2019 and 2018. For
definitions of commonly used natural gas and oil terms used in this Quarterly Report, please refer to the “ Glossary of Certain
Industry Terms” provided in our 2018 Annual Report.

The following discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actua results could
differ materially from those anticipated in forward-looking statements for many reasons, including the risks described in
“Cautionary Statement About Forward-Looking Statements’ in the forepart of this Quarterly Report, in Item 1A, “Risk Factors’
in Part | and elsewhere in our 2018 Annual Report, and Item 1A, “Risk Factors’ in Part |1 in this Quarterly Report and any other
quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed during thefiscal year. You should read thefollowing discussionwith our consolidated financial
statements and the related notes included in this Quarterly Report.
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OVERVIEW
Background

Southwestern Energy Company (includingitssubsidiaries, collectively, “we,” “our,” “us,” “the Company” or “ Southwestern™)
isan independent energy company engaged in natural gas, oil and NGL exploration, development and production, which we refer
toas“E&P” We are also focused on creating and capturing additional value through our marketing business, which we refer to
as “Midstream.” We conduct most of our businesses through subsidiaries, and we currently operate exclusively in the lower 48
United States. Our historical financial and operating results include the Fayetteville Shale E& P and related midstream gathering
businesses which were sold in early December 2018.

E&P. Our primary businessis the exploration for and production of natural gas, oil and NGL s, with our ongoing operations
focused on the development of unconventional natural gas reservoirs located in Pennsylvaniaand West Virginia. Our operations
in northeast Pennsylvania, which we refer to as“Northeast Appalachia,” are primarily focused on the unconventional natural gas
reservoir known as the Marcellus Shale. Our operations in West Virginia and southwest Pennsylvania, which we refer to as
“Southwest Appalachia,” are focused on the Marcellus Shale, the Utica and the Upper Devonian unconventional natural gas and
oil reservoirs. Collectively, our properties in Pennsylvania and West Virginia are herein referred to as the “ Appalachian Basin.”
We also have company-owned drilling rigs located in Pennsylvania and West Virginia, and we provide certain oilfield products
and services, principally serving our E& P operations through vertical integration.

Midstream. Our marketing activities capture opportunities that arise through the marketing and transportation of natural gas,
oil and NGL s produced in our E& P operations. In December 2018, we divested almost all of our gathering assets as part of the
Fayetteville Shale sdle.

Recent Financial and Operating Results
Significant first quarter 2019 operating and financia results include:
Total Company

*  Netincomeattributable to common stock of $594 million, or $1.10 per diluted share, increased 190% compared to net income
attributable to common stock of $205 million, or $0.36 per diluted share, for the same period in 2018. The increase was
primarily dueto a$426 million deferred income tax benefit recorded during thefirst quarter of 2019 resulting from therelease
of atax valuation allowance previously recorded against our deferred tax assets.

*  Operating income of $213 million decreased 16% compared to operating income of $255 million for the same period in 2018
onaconsolidated basis. Thedecreasewas primarily dueto thedivestiture of the Fayetteville Shale E& Pand rel ated midstream
gathering assets on December 3, 2018.

» Net cash provided by operating activities of $442 million increased 21% from $364 million for the same period in 2018
primarily due to a positive change in working capital.

»  Total capital investing of $325 million decreased 4% from $338 million for the same period in 2018.

»  The Company repurchased 5.3 million shares of its common stock for approximately $21 million.

E&P

e E&P segment operating income of $210 million decreased 12% from $238 million for the same period in 2018.

e Tota net production of 182 Bcfewas comprised of 79% natural gasand 21% NGLsand oil. E& Psegment production volumes
of 226 Bcfefor thefirst quarter of 2018 include 67 Bcf of production related to our operationsin the Fayetteville Shale, which
wassoldin December 2018. Excluding theimpact of the productionrel ated to the sold Fayetteville Shal e assets, our production
increased 14% from 159 Bcfe in the same period in 2018.

»  Excluding the effect of derivatives, our realized natural gas price of $2.95 per Mcf increased 8% from the same period in
2018, our realized oil price of $45.48 per barrel decreased 19% from the same period in 2018 and our realized NGL price of
$14.45 per barrel decreased 6% from the same period in 2018. Our total weighted average realized price excluding the effect
of derivatives of $2.98 per Mcfe increased 6% from the same period in 2018.

*  E&Psegment invested $325 million in capital; drilling 30 wells, completing 31 wells and placing 19 wellsto sales.
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Outlook

We expect to continue to exercise capital discipline through a fully-funded 2019 capital investment program. We remain
committed to our focus on optimizing our portfolio by concentrating our efforts on our highest return investment opportunities,
looking for opportunities to maximize margins in each core area of our business and further developing our knowledge of our
asset base. We believe our industry will continue to face challenges due to the uncertainty of natural gas, oil and NGL pricesin
the United States, changes in laws, regulations and investor sentiment, and other key factors described in “Risk Factors’ in the
Company’s 2018 Annual Report.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our results of operations for our segments is presented before intersegment eliminations. We
evaluate our segments as if they were stand-alone operations and accordingly discuss their results prior to any intersegment
eliminations. Restructuring charges, interest expense, gain (1oss) on derivatives, loss on early extinguishment of debt and income
tax expense are discussed on a consolidated basis.

E&P

The 2018 information in the table below includes the financial results from E& P assets in the Fayetteville Shale that were
sold in December 2018.

For the three months ended March 31,

(in millions) 2019 2018
Revenues $ 542 % 637
Operating costs and expenses 332 399
Operating income $ 210 $ 238
Loss on derivatives, settled $ (10) $ 9)

(1) Representsthe gain (loss) on settled commodity derivatives.
Operating Income

»  E&Psegment operating income for thefirst quarter of 2018 included $31 million related to our operations in the Fayetteville
Shale, which was sold in December 2018. Excluding amounts relating to the Fayetteville Shale, E& P segment operating
income increased $3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2019, compared to the same period in 2018, due to a $57
million increase in revenues, offset by a $54 million increase in operating costs.

Revenues

Thefollowing illustrates the effects on sal es revenues associated with changes in commodity prices and production volumes:

Three Months Ended March 31,

Natural
(in millions except percentages) Gas Qil NGLs Total
2018 sales revenues $ 535 $ 34 3 65 $ 634
Changes associated with the Fayetteville Shale sale® (152) — — (152)
2018 sales revenues, net of Fayetteville Shale revenues 383 34 65 482
Changes associated with prices 1 (©)] 5) (23)
Changes associated with production volumes® 37 14 21 72
2019 sales revenues $ 421 3% 39 $ 81 $ 541
Increase from 2018, net of Fayetteville Shale revenues 10% 15% 25% 12%

(1) Thisamount represents the revenues associated with the Fayetteville Shale assets, which were sold on December 3, 2018. There were no Fayetteville Shale
revenues in the first quarter of 2019.

In addition to the sales revenues detailed above, our E& P segment had $1 million and $3 million in other operating revenues
for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, primarily related to water sales to third-party operators.
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Production Volumes

For the three months ended March 31, Increase/
Production volumes: 2019 2018 (Decrease)
Natural Gas (Bcf)
Northeast Appalachia 112 108 4%
Southwest Appalachia 31 22 41%
Fayetteville Shale — 67 (100%)
Total 143 197 (27%)
QOil (MBbls)
Southwest Appalachia 849 594 43%
Other 5 19 (74%)
Total 854 613 39%
NGL (MBbls)
Southwest Appalachia 5,602 4,218 33%
Other 1 12 (92%)
Total 5,603 4,230 32%
Production volumes by area: (Bcfe)
Northeast Appalachia 112 108 4%
Southwest Appalachia 70 51 37%
Fayetteville Shale — 67 (100%)
Other — — —%
Total 182 226 (19%)
Production percentage: (Bcfe)
Natural gas 79% 87%
Oil 3% 2%
NGL 18% 11%
Total 100% 100%

(1) The Fayetteville Shale assets were sold on December 3, 2018.

e E&P segment production volumes for the first quarter of 2018 include 67 Bcf of production related to our operationsin the
Fayetteville Shale, which was sold in December 2018. Excluding this amount, production volumes for our E& P segment
increased by 23 Bcfe for the three months ended March 31, 2019 compared to the same periods in 2018, primarily dueto a
37% increase in production volumes from Southwest Appalachia.

* Oil and NGL production grew 39% and 32%, respectively, compared to the same period in 2018, reflecting our shifting
commodity production mix towards liquids.

Commodity Prices

Thepricewe expect to receivefor our productionisacritical factor in determining the capital investmentswe maketo develop
our properties. Commodity prices fluctuate due to avariety of factors we cannot control or predict, including increased supplies
of natural gas, oil or NGLs due to greater exploration and development activities, weather conditions, political and economic
events, and competition from other energy sources. These factors impact supply and demand, which in turn determine the sales
pricesfor our production. Inadditiontothesefactors, thepriceswerealizefor our production are affected by our hedging activities
aswell aslocational differencesin market prices, including basis differentials. We will continue to evaluate the commaodity price
environments and adjust the pace of our activity in order to maintain appropriate liquidity and financial flexibility.
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Natural Gas Price:
NYMEX Henry Hub Price ($/MMBtu)
Discount to NYMEX @
Average realized gas price per Mcf, excluding derivatives
Loss on settled financial basis derivatives ($/Mcf)
Gain (loss) on settled commaodity derivatives ($/Mcf)
Average realized gas price per Mcf, including derivatives

Oil Price:
WTI ail price ($/Bbl)
Discount to WTI
Average ail price per Bbl, excluding derivatives
Gain on settled derivatives ($/Bbl)
Average ail price per Bbl, including derivatives

NGL Price:
Average net realized NGL price per Bbl, excluding derivatives
Gain on settled derivatives ($/Bbl)
Average net realized NGL price per Bbl, including derivatives
Percentage of WTI, excluding derivatives

Total Weighted Average Realized Price:
Excluding derivatives ($/Mcfe)
Including derivatives ($/Mcfe)

(1) Based onlast day settlement prices from monthly futures contracts.

For the three months ended March 31, Increase/
2019 2018 (Decrease)
$ 3.15 $ 3.00 5%
(0.20) (0.28) (29%)
$ 2.95 $ 2.72 8%
(0.03) (0.11)
(0.08) 0.06
$ 2.84 $ 2.67 6%
$ 54.90 $ 62.87 (13%)
(9.42) (6.86) 37%
$ 45.48 $ 56.01 (19%)
2.34 —
$ 47.82 $ 56.01 (15%)
$ 14.45 $ 15.42 (6%)
0.60 0.01
$ 15.05 $ 15.43 (2%)
26% 25%
$ 2.98 $ 2.81 6%
$ 2.92 $ 2.77 5%

(2) Thisdiscountincludesabasisdifferential, aheating content adjustment, physical basissales, third-party transportation chargesand fuel charges, and excludes

financial basis hedges.

We receive a sales price for our natural gas at a discount to average monthly NYMEX settlement prices based on heating
content of the gas, locational basis differentials and transportation and fuel charges. Additionally, we receive a sales price for our
oil and NGLs at a difference to average monthly West Texas | ntermediate settlement and Mont Belvieu NGL composite prices,
respectively, duetoanumber of factorsincluding product quality, compositionand typesof NGL ssold, locational basisdifferentials,

transportation and fuel charges.

We regularly enter into various hedging and other financial arrangements with respect to a portion of our projected natural
gas, oil and NGL production in order to ensure certain desired level s of cash flow and to minimize theimpact of price fluctuations,
including fluctuationsin locational market differentials. We refer you to Item 3, “ Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About
Market Risk” and Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements, included in this Quarterly Report.

The table below presents the amount of our future production in which the basisis protected as of March 31, 2019:

Basis Swaps - Natural Gas
2019
2020
Tota

Physical NYMEX Sales Arrangements - Natural Gas
2019
2020
Total

40

Volume (Bcf) Basis Differentia
8 $ (0.50)
59 (0.44)
144
157 $ (0.31)
53 (0.19)
210
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In addition to protecting basis, the table below presents the amount of our future production in which price is financially

protected as of March 31, 2019:

Remaining Full Year Full Year
2019 2020 2021
Natural gas (Bcf) 340 146 37
Oil (MBbls) 1,581 732 —
Propane (MBbls) 2,028 1,190 —
Ethane (MBbls) 2,778 732 —
Total financial protection on future production (Bcfe) 378 162 37

We refer you to Note 9 of the consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report for additional details about

our derivative instruments.

Operating Costs and Expenses

For the three months ended March 31, Increase/

(in millions except percentages) 2019 2018 (Decrease)
L ease operating expenses $ 166 $ 213 (22%0)
General & administrative expenses 34 48 (29%)
Restructuring charges 3 — 100%
Taxes, other than income taxes 19 21 (10%)
Full cost pool amortization 103 108 (5%)
Non-full cost pool DD& A 7 9 (22%)
Total operating costs $ 332 $ 399 (17%)

For the three months ended March 31, Increase/

Average unit costs per Mcfe: 2019 2018 (Decrease)
L ease operating expenses® $ 09 $ 0.94 (4%)
General & administrative expenses $ 019 @ g 0.21 (10%)
Taxes, other than income taxes $ 0.10 $ 0.09 11%
Full cost pool amortization $ 0.57 $ 0.48 19%

(1) Includes gathering, processing and compression charges.
(2) Excludes $3 million of restructuring charges.

L ease Operating Expenses

»  Lease operating expenses per Mcfe decreased $0.04 for the three months ended March 31, 2019, respectively, compared to
the same period of 2018, primarily due to a$0.02 per M cfe decrease associated with the sale of our Fayetteville Shale assets,
which were sold in December 2018, and a $0.02 per Mcfe decrease primarily related to preventative maintenance associated
with extended severe winter weather and a one-time charge of $3.7 million related to NGL processing fees, both recorded in
the first quarter of 2018.

General and Administrative Expenses

e Genera and administrative expenses decreased $14 million for the three months ended March 31, 2019, compared to the
same period in 2018, primarily due to the implementation of cost reduction initiatives and decreased personnel costs.

Taxes, Other than Income Taxes

« Onaper Mcfebasis, taxes, other thanincometaxes, may vary from period to period dueto changesin ad valorem and severance
taxes that result from the mix of our production volumes and fluctuations in commodity prices. Taxes, other than income
taxes, increased $0.01 for the three months ended March 31, 2019, compared to the same period of 2018, primarily due to
the impact of higher natural gas prices on our tax rates.
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Full Cost Pool Amortization

Our full cost pool amortization rate increased $0.09 per Mcfe for the three months ended March 31, 2019, respectively, as
compared to the same periodsin 2018. The average amortization rate increased primarily as aresult of the impact of capital
investment and the further evaluation of our unproved properties during the past twelve months and the impact of the
Fayetteville Shale sale, which reduced our total natural gas reserves along with the carrying value of our full cost pool assets.

The amortization rateisimpacted by the timing and amount of reserve additions and the costs associated with those additions,
revisions of previous reserve estimates due to both price and well performance, write-downs that result from full cost ceiling
impairments, proceeds from the sale of properties that reduce the full cost pool, and the levels of costs subject to
amortization. We cannot predict our future full cost pool amortization rate with accuracy dueto the variability of each of the
factors discussed above, aswell as other factors, including but not limited to the uncertainty of the amount of future reserve
changes.

Unevaluated costs excluded from amortization were $1.7 billion at March 31, 2019, compared to $1.8 billion at December
31, 2018. The unevaluated costs excluded from amortization decreased as the impact of $52 million of unevaluated capital
invested during the period was more than offset by the evaluation of previously unevaluated propertiestotaling $134 million.

Midstream
For the three months ended March 31, Increase/
(in millions except percentages) 2019 2018 (Decrease)

Marketing revenues $ 940 $ 829 13%
Gas gathering revenues - 0 67 (100%)
Other operating revenues 1 — —%
Marketing purchases 934 819 14%
Operating costs and expenses 4 @ 60 @ (93%)
Operating income $ 3 $ 17 (82%)
Volumes marketed (Bcfe) 289 © 265 9%
Volumes gathered (Bcf) — @ 103 (100%)
Percent natural gas marketed from affiliated E& P operations 69% © 97%

Affiliated E& P oil and NGL production marketed 75% 67%

(€]
@

(©)

Reflects the sale of our Fayetteville Shale-related gathering business, which was sold in December 2018.

Includes $10 million impairment related to certain non-core gathering assets and a $1 million gain from the sale of certain compressor eguipment for the
three months ended March 31, 2018.

Includes the effect of the purchase and sale of production from the buyer of the Fayetteville Shale, which was sold in December 2018.

Operating Income

Midstream operating income for the first quarter of 2018 includes $22 million related to our gathering operations in the
Fayetteville Shale, which were sold in December 2018. Excluding this amount, operating income increased $8 million for
the three months ended March 31, 2019, compared to the same period in 2018, primarily due to a$10 million impairment of
non-core gathering assets in 2018, partially offset by a $4 million decrease in the marketing margin.

The margin generated from marketing activities was $6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2019, compared to $10
million for the same period in 2018.

Margins are driven primarily by volumes marketed and may fluctuate depending on the prices paid for commodities and the

ultimate disposition of those commodities. Increases and decreases in marketing revenues due to changes in commaodity prices
and volumes marketed are largely offset by corresponding changes in marketing purchase expenses.

Revenues

Revenues from our marketing activitiesincreased $111 million for the three months ended March 31, 2019, compared to the
same period in 2018, primarily due to a9% increase in volumes marketed and a4% increase in the price received for volumes
marketed.

42



Table of Contents

Operating Costs and Expenses

»  Midstream operating costs and expenses for the first quarter of 2018 included $44 million related to our gathering operations
in the Fayetteville Shale, which was sold in December 2018. Excluding thisamount, operating costs and expenses decreased
$12 million for the three months ended March 31, 2019, compared to the same period in 2018, primarily dueto a$10 million
impairment of non-core gathering assets in 2018, a $1 million decrease in operating expenses related to non-core gathering
assetswhichweredivestedin 2018 and a$1 million decreasein general and administrative expenses dueto theimplementation
of cost reductions.

Consolidated
Restructuring Charges

In December 2018, we closed the sale of the equity in certain of our subsidiaries that owned and operated our Fayetteville
Shale E& Pand related midstream gathering assetsin Arkansas. As part of thistransaction, most employees associated with those
assets became empl oyees of the buyer athough the employment of some was or will be terminated. All affected employees were
offered aseverance package, which included aone-time cash payment depending on length of serviceand, if applicable, the current
vaue of aportion of equity awards that were forfeited. Weincurred $2 million in severance costs related to the Fayetteville Shale
sale for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and have recognized these costs as restructuring charges.

As aresult of the Fayetteville Shale sale, we incurred $1 million in charges in the first quarter of 2019 primarily related to
office consolidation and have recognized these costs as restructuring charges.

For the three months ended March 31, 2019, we recognized total restructuring charges of $3 million, of which $2 million was
related to cash severance, including payroll taxes withheld. We expect to incur up to an additional $3 million to $5 million in
restructuring charges for the remainder of 2019 related to office consolidation. All personnel-related activities related to
restructuring are expected to be substantially complete in the second quarter of 2019.

Interest Expense

For the three months ended March 31, Increase/
(in millions except percentages) 2019 2018 (Decrease)
Gross interest expense:
Senior notes $ 39 % 50 (22%)
Credit arrangements 3 15 (80%)
Amortization of debt costs 1 2 (50%)
Total grossinterest expense 43 67 (36%)
Less: capitalization (29) (28) 4%
Net interest expense $ 14 3% 39 (64%)

« Interest expense related to our senior notes decreased for the three months ended March 31, 2019, compared to the same
periods in 2018, as we repurchased $900 million of our outstanding senior notes in December 2018 with a portion of the
proceeds from the Fayetteville Shale sale. Additionally, S& P and Moody’s upgraded our public bond ratings in April and
May 2018, respectively, which lowered the interest rates associated with our Senior Notes due 2020 and 2025 by half of a
basis point, effective in July 2018.

* Interest expenserelated to our credit arrangements decreased for the three months ended March 31, 2019, as compared to the
same period in 2018, primarily due to the extinguishment of our 2016 term loan and entering into our revolving credit facility
in April 2018, which decreased our outstanding borrowing amount, and the repayment of our revolving credit facility
borrowings with a portion of the net proceeds from the Fayetteville Shale sale.

» Capitalized interest dightly increased for the three months ended March 31, 2019, compared to the same period in 2018, and
increased as a percentage of gross interest expense primarily due to an increase in our average cost of debt.

Gain (Loss) on Derivatives

For the three months ended March 31,

(in millions) 2019 2018

Gain (loss) on unsettled derivatives $ (22) $ 2

Loss on settled derivatives (10) 9
Loss on derivatives $ (32) $ (7
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We refer you to Note 9 to the consolidated financial statementsincluded in this Quarterly Report for additional details about
our gain (loss) on derivatives.

Income Taxes

For the three months ended March 31,
(in millions except percentages) 2019 2018
Income tax benefit $ (426) $ —
Effective tax rate (254%) 0%

e Asof thefirst quarter of 2019, we have sustained athree-year cumulative level of profitability. Based on thisfactor and other
positive evidence such as forecasted income, we concluded that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets would
be realized and released substantially al of the valuation allowance. Thisresulted in adiscrete tax benefit recorded for the
period of $426 million. We expect to keep avaluation allowance of $87 million related to net operating lossesin jurisdictions
in which we no longer operate.

e Our low effective tax rate in 2018 was the result of our recognition of a valuation allowance that reduced the deferred tax
asset primarily related to our current net operating loss carryforward. A valuation allowancefor deferred tax assets, including
net operating losses, is recognized when it is more likely than not that some or all of the benefit from the deferred tax asset
will not be realized.

New Accounting Standards Implemented in this Report

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements of this Quarterly Report for adiscussion of new accounting standards
which have been implemented.

New Accounting Standards Not Yet Implemented in this Report

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements of this Quarterly Report for adiscussion of new accounting standards
which have not yet been implemented.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We depend on funds generated from our operations, our cash and cash equivalents balance, our revolving credit facility and
capital markets as our primary sources of liquidity. Although we have financial flexibility with our cash balance and the ability
to draw on our $2.0 billion revolving credit facility (less outstanding letters of credit which were approximately $172 million as
of March 31, 2019), we continueto be committed to our capital disciplinestrategy of investing within our cash flow from operations
net of changes in working capital, supplemented by a portion of the net proceeds from the Fayetteville Shale sale realized in
December 2018.

Our cash flow from operating activities is highly dependent upon the sales prices that we receive for our natural gas and
liquids production. Natural gas, oil and NGL prices are subject to wide fluctuations and are driven by market supply and demand,
which isimpacted by many factors. The sales price we receive for our production is aso influenced by our commodity hedging
activities. Our derivative contracts allow usto ensure acertain level of cash flow to fund our operations.  See " Quantitative and

Qualitative Disclosuresabout Market Risks” inltem 3and Note 9, in the consolidated financial statementsincluded inthisQuarterly
Report for further details.

Our commaodity hedging activities are subject to the credit risk of our counterparties being financially unable to settle the
transaction. We actively monitor the credit status of our counterparties, performing both quantitative and qualitative assessments
based on their credit ratings and credit default swap rates where applicable, and to date have not had any credit defaults associated
with our transactions. However, any future failures by one or more counterparties could negatively impact our cash flow from
operating activities.

Our short-term cash flows are al'so dependent on the timely collection of receivables from our customers and joint interest
owners. Weactively managethisrisk through credit management activitiesand, through thedate of thisfiling, havenot experienced
any significant write-offs for non-collectable amounts. However, any sustained inaccessibility of credit by our customers and
joint interest partners could adversely impact our cash flows.

Duetothese abovefactors, weare unableto forecast with certainty our futurelevel of cash flow from operations. Accordingly,
we expect to adjust our discretionary uses of cash depending upon available cash flow. Further, we may from time to time seek
to retire, rearrange or amend some or al of our outstanding debt or debt agreements through cash purchases, and/or exchanges,
open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions, tender offers or otherwise. Such transactions, if any, will depend on
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prevailing market conditions, our liquidity requirements, contractual restrictions and other factors. The amounts involved may
be material.

Credit Arrangements and Financing Activities

On April 26, 2018, we replaced our 2016 credit facility with a new revolving credit facility which matures in April
2023. Although the 2018 revolving credit facility currently has a maximum borrowing capacity of $3.5 billion, aborrowing base
of $2.1 billion and commitments of $2.0 billion, it is subject to both a borrowing base that is determined semiannually in April
and October by the lenders and the permitted lien limitations in our senior note indentures. The borrowing base is subject to
change based primarily on drilling results, commaodity prices, thelevel of capital investing and operating costs. OnApril 4, 2019,
the banks participating in our 2018 credit facility reaffirmed the borrowing base of $2.1 billion. Asof March 31, 2019, we had
no borrowings outstanding on our 2018 revolving credit facility and $172 million in letters of credit.

As of March 31, 2019, we were in compliance with all of the covenants of our revolving credit facility in al material
respects. Werefer youto Note12 of theconsolidated financial statementsincludedinthisQuarterly Report for additional discussion
of the covenant requirements of our 2018 revolving credit facility. Although we do not anticipate any violations of the financial
covenants, our ability to comply with these covenantsis dependent upon the success of our exploration and devel opment program
and upon factors beyond our control, such as the market prices for natural gas and liquids.

The credit status of the financial institutions participating in our revolving credit facility could adversely impact our ability
to borrow funds under the revolving credit facility. Although we believe al of the lenders under the facility have the ability to
providefunds, we cannot predict whether each will be ableto meet their obligationto us. Werefer youto Note 12 to the consolidated
financial statementsincluded in this Quarterly Report for additional discussion of our revolving credit facility.

Because of the focused work on refinancing and repayment of our debt during 2017 and 2018, only $265 million, or 11%, of
our outstanding debt balance as of March 31, 2019 will come due prior to 2025, with $52 million of that coming due in the next
year.

At March 31, 2019, we had along-term issuer credit rating of Ba2 by Moody’s, along-term debt rating of BB by S&Pand a
long-term issuer default rating of BB by Fitch Ratings. Any upgrades or downgrades in our public debt ratings by Moody’s or
S& P could decrease or increase our cost of funds, respectively.

Cash Flows
For the three months ended March 31,
(in millions) 2019 2018
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 442 % 364
Net cash used in investing activities (258) (294)
Net cash used in financing activities (29) (28)

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

For the three months ended March 31,

(in millions) 2019 2018

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 442 $ 364
Less: Changesin working capital (136) (6)
Net cash provided by operating activities, net of changesin working capital $ 306 $ 358

»  Netcash provided by operating activitiesincreased 21%, or $78 million, for thethree monthsended March 31, 2019, compared
to the same period in 2018, primarily dueto a$130 million increasein working capital partialy offset by theimpact of a19%
decrease in production volumes primarily associated with the December 2018 Fayetteville Shale sale.

*  Net cash generated from operating activities, net of changes in working capital, provided 94% of our cash requirements for
capital investments for the three months ended March 31, 2019, compared to providing 106% of our cash requirements for
capital investments for the same period in 2018. While we front-load our capital programs into the earlier quarters in the
year, we remain committed to our capital discipline strategy of investing within our cash flow from operations, net of changes
in working capital, supplemented by a portion of the net proceeds from the Fayetteville Shale sale.
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Cash Flow from Investing Activities

» Total E&P capital investing decreased $9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2019, compared to the same period
in 2018, due to a $5 million decrease in direct E& P capital investing and a $4 million decrease in capitalized interest and
internal costs, as compared to the same period in 2018.

For the three months ended March 31,

(in millions) 2019 2018
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Additions to properties and equipment $ 258 $ 302
Adjustments for capital investments
Changesin capital accruals 66 33
Other 1 3
Total capital investing $ 325 $ 338
Capital Investing
For the three months ended March 31, Increase/
(in millions except percentages) 2019 2018 (Decrease)
E& P capital investing $ 325 % 334 (3%)
Midstream capital investing® — 4 (100%)
Total capital investing $ 325 % 338 (4%)

(1) Our Midstream gathering business in the Fayetteville Shale was sold in December 2018.

For the three months ended March 31,

(in millions) 2019 2018
E& P Capital Investments by Type:
Exploratory and development drilling, including workovers $ 251 $ 255
Acquisitions of properties 7 20
Seismic expenditures 1 1
Water infrastructure project 15 3
Drilling rigs and other 2 2
Capitalized interest and expenses 49 53
Total E& P capital investments $ 325 % 334
E& P Capital Investments by Area:
Northeast Appalachia $ 106 $ 11
Southwest Appalachia 198 202
Fayetteville Shale — 15
New Ventures & Other @ 21 6
Total E& P capital investments $ 325 $ 334

(1) Includes $15 million and $3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, related to our water infrastructure project.

For the three months ended March 31,

2019 2018
Gross Operated Well Count Summary:
Drilled 30 32
Completed 31 29
Wellsto sales 19 33

Actual capital expenditurelevels may vary significantly from period to period due to many factors, including drilling results,
natural gas, oil and NGL prices, industry conditions, the prices and availability of goods and services, and the extent to which
properties are acquired or non-strategic assets are sold.
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Cash Flow from Financing Activities

(in millions except percentages) March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018 Increase/(Decrease)

Debt @ $ 2319 $ 2318 $ 1

Equity 2,937 2,362 575
Total debt to capitalization ratio 44% 50%

Debt @ $ 2319 $ 2318 $ 1

Less: Cash and cash equivalents 366 201 165
Debt, net of cash and cash equivalents ® $ 1,953  $ 2117  $ (164)

(1) Theincreasein total debt asof March 31, 2019, as compared to December 31, 2018, relates to the amortization of financing costs during thefirst quarter in
2019.

(2) Debt, net of cash and cash equivalentsis anon-GAAP financial measure of acompany’s ability to repay its debt if it was al due today.

We refer you to Note 12 of the consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report for additional discussion
of our outstanding debt and credit facilities.

Working Capital

*  Wehad negative working capital of $56 million at March 31, 2019 primarily dueto $52 million of our long-term debt, which
matures in less than a year, being reclassified as a current liability.

» At December 31, 2018, we had positive working capital of $110 million at December 31, 2018 primarily due to $201 million
of cash and cash equival entsresulting fromthe net proceedsfrom the Fayetteville Shale saleand increasein accountsreceivable
primarily related to the increase in commodity pricing in December 2018, as compared to December 2017.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We may enter into off-balance sheet arrangements and transactions that can give rise to material off-balance sheet
obligations. As of March 31, 2019, our materia off-balance sheet arrangements and transactions include operating service
arrangements and $172 million in letters of credit outstanding against our 2018 revolving credit facility. There are no other
transactions, arrangements or other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons that are reasonably likely to
materially affect our liquidity or availability of our capital resources. For more information regarding off-balance sheet
arrangements, werefer you to “ Contractual Obligationsand Contingent Liabilitiesand Commitments’ in our 2018 Annual Report.

Contractual Obligations and Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

We have various contractual obligationsin the normal course of our operations and financing activities. Other than the firm
transportation and gathering agreements discussed bel ow, there have been no material changesto our contractual obligationsfrom
those disclosed in our 2018 Annual Report.

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

As of March 31, 2019, our contractual obligations for demand and similar charges under firm transportation and gathering
agreements to guarantee access capacity on natural gas and liquids pipelines and gathering systems totaled approximately $9.0
billion, $1.4 billion of which related to access capacity on future pipeline and gathering infrastructure projects that still require
the granting of regulatory approvals and/or additional construction efforts. This amount also included guarantee obligations of
up to $403 million. Asof March 31, 2019, future payments under non-cancelable firm transportation and gathering agreements
are asfollows:

Payments Due by Period
Lessthan 1 Morethan 8
(in millions) Total Year 1to3Years 3to5Years 5to8years Years
Infrastructure currently in service $ 7583 $ 723 $ 1,304 $ 1,135 $ 1520 $ 2,901
Pending regulatory approval and/or construction 1,411 4 113 167 285 842
Total transportation charges $ 8,994 $ 727 $ 1417 $ 1302 $ 1,805 $ 3,743

(1) Based on the estimated in-service dates as of March 31, 2019.

Includedinthetransportation chargesaboveare $108 million (potentially dueinlessthan oneyear) and $80 million (potentially
due in one to two years) related to certain agreements that remain in the name of our marketing affiliate but are expected to be
paid in full by Flywheel Energy Operating, LLC, the purchaser of the Fayetteville Shale assets. Of these amounts, we may be
obligated to reimburse Flywheel Energy Operating, LLC for a portion of volumetric shortfalls during 2019 and 2020 (up to $94
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million) under these transportation agreements and have currently recorded a $78 million liability as of March 31, 2019, down
from $88 million recorded at December 31, 2018.

Inthefirst quarter of 2019, we agreed to purchase firm transportation with pipelinesin the Appal achian Basin starting in 2021
and running through 2032 totaling $357 million in total contractual commitments of which the seller has agreed to reimburse $133
million of these commitments.

Substantially all of our employees are covered by defined benefit and postretirement benefit plans. For the three months
ended March 31, 2019, we have contributed $5 million to the pension and postretirement benefit plans. We expect to contribute
an additional $7 million to our pension and postretirement benefit plans during the remainder of 2019. We recognized liabilities
of $44 million and $47 million as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respectively, as aresult of the underfunded status
of our pension and other postretirement benefit plans. See Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements included in this
Quarterly Report for additional discussion about our pension and other postretirement benefits.

We are subject to various litigation, claims and proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business, such as for alleged
breaches of contract, miscalculation of royalties, employment matters, traffic incidents, pollution, contamination, encroachment
on others' property or nuisance. We accrue for such items when a liability is both probable and the amount can be reasonably
estimated. Management believesthat current litigation, claims and proceedings, individually or in aggregate and after taking into
account insurance, are not likely to have a material adverse impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows,
although it is possible that adverse outcomes could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or cash flows for
the period in which the effect of that outcome becomes reasonably estimable. Many of these matters are in early stages, so the
allegations and the damage theories have not been fully developed, and are all subject to inherent uncertainties; therefore,
management’s view may change in the future.

We are also subject to laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment. Environmental and cleanup related
costs of a non-capital nature are accrued when it is both probable that a liability has been incurred and when the amount can be
reasonably estimated. Management believes any future remediation or other compliance related costs will not have a materia
effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

For further information, we refer you to “Litigation” and “Environmental Risk” in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statementsincluded in Item | of Part | of this Quarterly Report.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risksrelating to our operations result primarily from the volatility in commaodity prices, basis differentials and interest
rates, aswell asservice costsand credit risk concentrations. We usefixed price swap agreements, options, basis swapsand interest
rate swaps to reduce the volatility of earnings and cash flow due to fluctuations in the prices of natural gas, oil and certain NGLs
along with interest rates. Our Board of Directors has approved risk management policies and procedures to utilize financial
productsfor the reduction of defined commaodity pricerisk. Utilization of financial productsfor the reduction of interest rate risks
is also overseen by our Board of Directors. These policies prohibit speculation with derivatives and limit swap agreements to
counterparties with appropriate credit standings.

Credit Risk

Our exposure to concentrations of credit risk consists primarily of trade receivables and derivative contracts associated with
commoditiestrading. Concentrationsof credit risk with respect to receivablesarelimited dueto the large number of our purchasers
and their dispersion across geographic areas. However, at March 31, 2019, Direct Energy Business Marketing LLC accounted
for approximately 11.3% of the quarter’stotal natural gas, oil and NGL sales. At December 31, 2018, two subsidiaries of Royal
Dutch Shell Plc in aggregate accounted for approximately 10.4% of the quarter’s total natural gas, oil and NGL sales. A default
on these accounts could have a material impact on the Company, but we do not believe that thereis a material risk of an event of
default. We believe that the loss of any one customer would not have an adverse effect on our ability to sell our natural gas, oil
and NGL production. See “Commaodities Risk” below for discussion of credit risk associated with commaodities trading.
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Interest Rate Risk

As of March 31, 2019, we had approximately $2.3 billion of outstanding senior notes with a weighted average interest rate
of 6.68%, and no borrowings under our revolving credit facility. We currently have an interest rate swap in effect to mitigate a
portion of our exposureto volatility ininterest rates. AtMarch 31, 2019, we had along-termissuer credit rating of Ba2 by Moody'’s,
along-term debt rating of BB by S& Pand along-termissuer default rating of BB by Fitch Ratings. Any upgrades or downgrades
in our public debt ratings by Moody’s or S& P could decrease or increase our cost of funds, respectively.

Expected Maturity Date

($ in millions) 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Thereafter Total
Fixed rate payments $ — 3% 52 $ — $ 213 3 — $ 2077 $ 2342
Weighted average interest rate —% 5.30% —% 4.10% —% 6.98% 6.68%

Variable rate payments @ — — — — ) _ _ o

Weighted average interest rate —% —% —% —% 3.92% —% 3.92%

(1) Excludes unamortized debt issuance costs and debt discounts.
Commodities Risk

We use over-the-counter fixed price swap agreements and optionsto protect sales of our production against the inherent risks
of adverse price fluctuations or locational pricing differences between a published index and the NYMEX futures market. These
swaps and options include transactions in which one party will pay a fixed price (or variable price) for a notional quantity in
exchange for receiving a variable price (or fixed price) based on a published index (referred to as price swaps) and transactions
in which parties agree to pay a price based on two different indices (referred to as basis swaps).

The primary market risks relating to our derivative contracts are the volatility in market prices and basis differentials for our
production. However, the market price risk is offset by the gain or loss recognized upon the related sale or purchase of the
production that is financially protected. Credit risk relates to the risk of loss as a result of non-performance by our
counterparties. The counterparties are primarily major banks and integrated energy companies that management believes present
minimal credit risks. The credit quality of each counterparty and the level of financial exposure we have to each counterparty are
closely monitored to limit our credit risk exposure. Additionally, we perform both quantitative and qualitative assessments of
these counterparties based on their credit ratings and credit default swap rates where applicable. We have not incurred any
counterparty | ossesrel ated to non-performance and do not anticipate any losses given theinformation we have currently. However,
we cannot be certain that we will not experience such losses in the future. We refer you to Note 9 of the consolidated financial
statements included in this Quarterly Report for additional details about our derivative instruments.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have performed an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rule
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act. Our disclosure controls and procedures are the controls and other procedures
that we have designed to ensure that we record, process, accumulate and communicate information to our management, including
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures and submission
within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have
inherent limitations. Therefore, even those determined to be effective can provide only alevel of reasonabl e assurance with respect
to financial statement preparation and presentation. Based on the evaluation, our management, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of March 31, 2019
at areasonable assurance level.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changesin our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Exchange Act) that occurred during the quarter ended March 31, 2019 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Refer to “Litigation” and “Environmental Risk” in Note 13 to the consolidated financia statementsincluded in Item 1 of Part
| of this Quarterly Report for a discussion of the Company’s legal proceedings.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Therewere no additions or material changesto our risk factorsasdisclosed in Item 1A of Part | inthe Company’s2018 Annual
Report.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
Not applicable.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
Not applicable.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Our sand mining operations in support of our E& P business are subject to regulation by the Federal Mine Safety and Health
Administration under the Federal Mine Safety and Health Act of 1977. Information concerning mine safety violations or other
regulatory matters required by Section 1503(a) of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and Item 104
of Regulation S-K (17 CFR 229.106) isincluded in Exhibit 95.1 to this Quarterly Report.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable.
ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

(3L.1)* Certification of CEO filed pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
(3L.2)* Certification of CFO filed pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
(32.1)* Certification of CEO furnished pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002
(32.2)* Certification of CFO furnished pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002
(95.1)* Mine Safety Disclosure
(101.INS) Interactive Data File Instance Document
(101.SCH) Interactive Data File Schema Document
(101.CAL) Interactive Data File Calculation Linkbase Document
(101.LAB) Interactive Data File Label Linkbase Document
(101.PRE) Interactive Data File Presentation Linkbase Document
(101.DEF) Interactive Data File Definition Linkbase Document
*Filed herewith
Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY COMPANY
Registrant
Dated: April 25, 2019 /s JULIAN M. BOTT

Julian M. Bott
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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